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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

From left: Sam Allen, Dave Everitt, Jim Field, Jim Israel,
Bob Lane, Jim lenkins, Mike Mack, H.J. Markley and
Mark von Pentz. Shown with John Deere 3510 sugar
cane harvester, one of the industry's most advanced
and productive machines, produced in the
1.S. and Brazil.

NEW BRAZIL
TRACTOR FACTORY
BEGINS OPERATION

In a move to strengthen John Deere’s competitive
position in South America, the company opened

a new, state-of-the-art tractor factory in
Montenegro, Brazil, in 2007. “The new facility
positions Deere to participate more fully in growing
markets and complements our leading position in
combines and seeding equipment with a broader,
more productive line of tractors,” says Mark von
Pentz, President, Ag Harvesting Division. Deere sales
in Central and South America — where Brazil is the
largest market — increased 60 percent in 2007.
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ON THE COVER

Innovation and quality describe the tohn Deere 9770 STS combine, 6720 motor grader, 2500E hybrid greens mower, and 12700
forestry harvester shawn on the cover. They are among the intelligent machines that make use of advanced technalogy such as
GPS, precision sensars and electric drives to improve operating efficiency and productivity. The wind turbines represent company
investments in wind farms for alternative energy, which in some cases are located on our equipment customers’ own fand.
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Washington,
2007 was a standout year for John Deere. Aiming to distinctively serve customers as %&n

worldwide, the company introduced an exceptional number of advanced new products
and brought the power and value of the John Deere brand to a growing global audience.
In addition, Deere made further strides in asset management and continued to find ways
to operate with more efficiency and effectiveness. Powerful economic and demographic
trends, based primarily on rising global affluence and increasing demand for food and
energy, lent support to these efforts as well. With record sales and earnings now for four
consecutive years, our performance reflects improving execution of our plans to grow a
business fundamentally more resilient, more profitable, and more rewarding to investors.
For fiscal 2007, Deere reported net income of $1.82 billion on total net sales and
revenues of $24.1 billion. Income from continuing operations increased 25 percent on
a 9 percent gain in sales and revenue, compared with 2006. Income from continuing ROBERT W. LANE
operations was up 30 percent on a per-share basis, aided by a reduced share count. Deere’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
agricultural, commercial and consumer, and credit businesses all had record profits.
Importantly, the construction and forestry operations remained strongly profitable in spite
of rapidly deteriorating market conditions. C&F’s performance is a reflection of our goal to
operate every business in a profitable manner, whether markets are strong or weak.
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POWERFUL TAILWINDS HOLD GREAT PROMISE -

Deere’s growth plans are receiving support from powerful global-economic tailwinds ‘
involving global population growth, increased affluence leading to upgraded diets and
higher livestock-product consumption, plus the growing use of biofuels.

« Population. The world's population is growing rapidly in size, creating more need for food,
energy, and infrastructure. Many expect the population to increase by about 2.5 billion,
or roughly 40 percent, within only four decades. In India, 40 percent of the population, or
440 million people, are under age 18.

« Prosperity. A global prosperity explosion — most pronounced in some of the areas
experiencing the biggest population gains — is driving demand for food, especially meat, at $233 S5 52871
an accelerated rate. As incomes in poor countries rise, caloric intake increases and drives !
up global demand for grain. This is believed to be especially true as incomes grow from
$1 to $2 a day, a situation affecting approxirmately one-fourth of the world's population.

» Production. Planting, harvesting and transporting the potentially massive amounts of crop
material required for cellulosic energy, while not yet commercially viable, would likely
utilize John Deere equipment in a big way. Already, corn, sugar, soybeans and rapeseed are
being used in dozens of countries for biofuels such as ethanol and biodiesel.
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In the face of mounting requirements from virtually every corner of the world, farm Oparatig Prefi ()
commodity production (supply} has risen strongly but has not kept pace with use
(demand). At the same time, the positive impact of a global population swelling in both
size and affluence is leading to a greater need over time for housing, infrastructure,
grounds care, landscape supplies and services, and financing — providing support to ;
virtually all John Deere businesses.

$1447 3154 S1an

DRIVING FUNDAMENTAL CHANGES
Distinctively serving customers while rigorously managing assets lies at the heart of |
our strategy to earn mote profit on a more consistent basis. The company has made
dramatic progress reducing the amount of assets required to produce a given level of sales
and profit. Last year, trade receivables and inventories remained at their lowest point as
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Continuing its
geographic expansion,
John Deare Renswables
began construction in
2007 of Harvest Wind
Farm, a 32-turbine
project in Michigan that
will be abie to produce
more than 50 megawatts
of electricity. That's
enough to power 15,000 i
homes.

Deere’s highly successful 300-series
skid steer family was enhanced in
2007 with the addition of the 313
and 315 (shown) model skid steer
loaders. One key feature is a radial
lift boom, favared for work in areas
of limited space. The new skid
steers extend C&F's recent success
broadening its product line.

a percent of sales in recent times, and through year-end, had fallen on that basis for 30
consecutive quarters versus the same period of the prior year.

Largely as a result of Deere’s success managing costs and assets, the company is producing
healthy levels of SVA and cash flow. SVA, or Shareholder Value Added, is a measure of
operating profit after an implied capital charge. SVA increased to $1.3 billion in 2007 and, in
each of the last four years, has been more than twice as high as in any year prior to that time.
On an enterprise basis, cash flow from operating activities was a substantial $2.8 billion in
2007. With these dollars, Deere has invested in growth while buying back stock and increasing
dividend payments. Last year, the company invested $1 billion in new plants and projects
expected to be a powerful source of future profit. Share repurchases and dividends totaled
$1.9 billion. Over the last four years, 93 million shares {post stock split) have been
repurchased and the quarterly dividend rate has more than doubled.

TARGETING SUSTAINED SVA GROWTH

In our efforts to grow a great business, Deere uses sustainable SVA as the primary
metric. This reflects our determination to invest solely in those products, projects and
businesses that serve customers so well that they yield consistently superior returns
relative to the market opportunity. The company aims to achieve average SVA gains of
7 percent a year over the business cycle. Such a goal is challenging, requiring higher sales
and an unwavering focus on innovation to achieve. Deere’s aims for innovative growth are
supported by an intensive six-stage business growth process.

GROWING GLOBALLY

Extending the John Deere brand to new customers worldwide remains a top priority.
Last year, sales outside the United States and Canada surpassed $7 billion for the first
time. Deere’s sales to countries all around the world are growing and, in fact, nearly
doubled last year in the emerging markets of Brazil, Russia, India and China. Several key
projects and developments in these areas moved ahead in 2007:

« In Brazif, a new state-of-the-art tractor factory went into operation (sidebar, inside front
cover), allowing the company to expand production of high-horsepower tractors.

+ It Russia, a rapidly growing market well-suited for Deere’s productive, reliable equipment,
the company continued to strengthen its distribution and product support network. This
same process is occurring in other CIS {former Soviet) countries as well.

« In India, Deere’s value line of India-manufactured tractors continued to enjoy great
success and is being exported to dozens of countries. The Pune technical center also
provided cost-effective support to company operations throughout the world.

« Inn China, the company’s product line was further broadened with the acquisition of
Ningbo Benye, a respected manufacturer of small tractors.

GROWING IN ADJACENT MARKETS

Expanding our product range and entering attractive new businesses are vital to the
success of Deere’s growth efforts. Examples of advanced products that came to market
in 2007 included high-performance spraying, harvesting and construction equipment,
as well as smaller tractors and upgraded utility vehicles. We're appealing to mowing and
landscape contractors with an expanded line of commercial mowers and other equipment.
What's more, customer purchases are increasingly being financed by our global credit
operation, which, with its solid credit fundamentals, supports the sale of all types of
John Deere equipment and continues to deliver profitable growth. At the same time, the
company is targeting growth in four attractive areas that are highly complementary to our
core businesses: intelligent equipment solutions, landscapes, water technologies, and wind
energy.



« Joln Deere’s Intelligent Mobile Equipment Technologies (IMET) group saw significant
growth last year. That's because of a growing worldwide customer understanding of how
automated guidance systems, and other advanced GPS-based offerings, pay for themselves
through improved productivity.

s John Deere Landscapes continued to register impressive sales gains in 2007, while serving
an important customer group, professional-landscape contractors. Last year’s acquisition
of LESCO, Inc. made a significant impact on the landscape operation’s retail footprint and
product line.

« Jolin Deere Water Technologies, formed through the acquisition of Roberts Irrigation,
experienced positive sales growth in its first full year of operation. Its precision drip-
irrigation systems, which use water more efficiently than other irrigation methods, are
proving popular with customers concerned about water availability, cost and conservation.

« Joln Deere Renewables continued to make substantial wind investments often in
conjunction with rural cooperatives in areas where the company already has a presence.
To date, the wind-energy unit has participated in more than a dozen projects involving
nearly 600 megawatts of power.

BENEFITING FROM ALIGNED TEAMWORK

John Deere is working to establish a performance-based culture, enriched by the aligned
efforts of a dedicated worldwide workforce more than 50,000 strong. Without question,
high performance teamwork is making quite an impact on our results with customers and
on shareholder value. Talented employees from around the world and all backgrounds are
working together in an aligned, collaborative manner. We invest in them because they are
the key to rigorously upholding our values and to executing our plans at the highest level.

PROSPERING THROUGH SERVICE

A great business serves society by providing exceptional high-value products for
customers, offering appealing career opportunities for employees, delivering attractive
- returns for investors, and by being a valued neighbor. In this latter regard, the John Deere
Foundation continued its support of solutions for world hunger through sponsorship of
KickStart, an organization helping subsistence farmers in Africa become more productive
and profitable. Building on a proud record of stewardship, the company continued to
develop product solutions that are less disruptive to the environment. Last year Deere
introduced additional models of clean-burning, highly efficient PowerTech engines and
brought out a premium tractor that conserves fuel by generating its own electrical power
for certain accessories and other applications.

PERFORMANCE THAT ENDURES
John Deere aims to deliver performance that endures. This explains our consistent focus
on the prosperity of our customers and the well-being of those we serve. Today,
John Deere employees, like the dedicated thousands who preceded us, are energized by
the knowledge that our performance contributes so directly to a better quality of life and
to human flourishing. What's more, the company's unmatched and preeminent dealer
organization, now growing worldwide, plays a vital role in this regard by providing a
valuable linkage between the company and its customers.

To those we are privileged to serve, we say thanks for your loyalty. We pledge to earn
your continued support by redoubling our efforts to deliver performance that endures.

Sincerely, December 20, 2007

P

Robert W, Lane
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Promising the uitimate in
harvesting performance, the
Jobw Deere 8379 $TS combine
offers plenty of power (up to
480 rated hp) and productivity,
Equipped as shown with the new
612C corn head, the machine
offers fastes, easier harvesting
with improved grain quality.

One of many successful new
products, the John Desre Gator
XUV 4x4 utillty vehicle gets
high marks from customers
and the trade press for its
combination of comfart, power
and acceleration. Noted for
exceptional crossover appeal,
the XUV is equally suited for
wark or trait applications.




DEERE ENTERPRISE SHAREHOLDER VALUE ADDED - SVA (MM)

{2005 total includes discontinued operations)

$344 $859 $1.224
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EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS - SVA (MM}

2007 FINANCIAL SERVICES HIGHLIGHTS

= Global portfolio growth at John Deere Credit helps financial services
achieve record income from continuing operations of $364 million,

= Managed portfolio increases by nearly $1 billion, to $22.5 billion,
primarily from growth in retail financing.

® ohn Deere Credit's U.S. crop protection group, John Deere Risk
Protection, mare than doubles commissions for second consecutive
year, to $75 million.

I

DISCIPLINED GROWTH

= Expanding reach in important growth regions, John Deere Credit signs
cooperation agreements with BNP Paribas Leasing Group in Poland
and Cuscatlan Group in Central America to provide John Deere Credit-
branded retai! financing through dealer networks.

= Showing commitment to alternative energy market, John Deere
Renewables expands project development, debt financing, turbine
procurement and other energy business services to more {15, states.

$94 373 $30
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FINANCIAL SERVICES - SVA (MM)

{2065 total includes discontinued operations)




$454 $356 $869
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AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT - SVA (MM)

$420 $504 $264

05 06 07

CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY - SVA (MM)

$030) b1 391
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2007 AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT HIGHLIGHTS

» With support from an improving giobal farm economy, Ag Division
operating profit reaches $1.44 billion on sales of $12.1 biltion.

= High-horsepower tractors, productive combines, large-scale sprayers,
and self-propelled forage harvesters highlight one of company’s largest-
ever new product rollouts.

= Jales outside U.S. and Canada experience sharp gain, mainly due to
strengthening markets in Brazil, Russia and Europe.

DISCIPLINED GROWTH

» Expanding manufacturing in China, Deere acquires tractor maker
Ningbo Benye; gives company more complete tractor-product line in
Asia,

= Two newer growth businesses, John Deere Intelligent Mobile Equipment
Technologies and John Deere Water Technologies, attract new
customers, experience strong sales gains.

2007 CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY HIGHLIGHTS

= Reflecting the success of disciplined cost and asset management,
division remains strongly profitable in face of weakening in some
construction and forestry markets. Operating profit is $571 million on
sales of $5 billion.

» With support from higher foreétly sales in Russia and improved
construction markets in Latin America, division sales outside of U.S.
and Canada show strong rise.

DISCIPLINED GROWTH

= Plans for accelerated growth focus on global forestry and broader
product line, especially larger, more productive equipment for major
contractors.

s Demonstrating ability to respond to developing customer needs, C&F
offers three-machine system that can economically remove trees and
biomass using environmentally sound harvesting practices.

2007 COMMERCIAL & CONSUMER EQUIPMENT HIGHLIGHTS

w Sales rise 12% henefiting from new products and growth in landscapes
operation; aperating profit up 38%, to $304 million.

= Successful new products include EZtrak residential zero-turn-radius mower
line and Gator XUV 4x4 utility vehicle.

w New compact utility tractor features include innovative auto-hitch that
allows operator to attach rotary cutters and tillers without leaving seat,
improving efficiency and safety.

DISCIPLINED GROWTH

s Acquisition of LESCO, inc., a leading supplier of consumable products such as
fertilizer and seed, increases number of John Deere Landscapes store
locations to more than 600 and brings important additions to product line.

= Building on success providing golf and turf equipment to leading courses
throughout world, John Deere becomes exclusive golf-course irmigation supplier
to PGA Tour.




SVA: FOCUSING ON GROWTH AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT
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Deere Financial Services, (o croate and grow SVA, are targeting an after-tax
retum on average equity of appraximately 13%. The Financial Services SYA metric
is calcufated on # pretax basis, with certain adjustments. Operating profit is
adjusted for changes in the allowance for doublftd receivables and for discon-
tinued eperations, while the actual allowance is added to the equity base, These
adjustments are made to reflect actual write-offs in both income and equity.
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5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

DEERE COMPARED TO S&P 500 INDEX AND S&P 500 CONSTRUCTION & FARM MACHINERY INDEX

$450
3400
$350
$300
§280
% R S
$150
= $——
$100
$50
2002 2000 2004 2005 2006 207
—8&—  Deere & Company ~#-- 58P Construchon & Fam Machinery 4 58P 500
At October 31
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Deerg & Company 100.00 1321 133.48 137,98 1975 365.09
SAP Con & Farm Mach 100.00 167.23 188.33 221.29 281.24 41260
S&P 500 100.00 12080 132,18 14371 167.1 191.54

The peaph compeares the cumuiative kotal retums of Deere: & Company, the S&P 500 Corstruction & Fam Mactinery index, and the S8P 500 Stock Index over a five-year period.

It assumes $ 100 was imvested on October 31, 2002, and that dvidends are renvested. Deere & Company stock price at Ockober 31, 2007, was $77.45 fadusted o reflect 2-for-1 stock spit).
The Stanctarg & Poar's 500 Constructon & Farm MactEnery Index is mace up of Deere, Caterpdar, ., Surmmns inc., PACCAR Inc., and Terex Corporahon.

The stock performance shown in the graph is not intendad 1o forecast and does not necessarly indicate futurs price perfomanca.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
OCTOBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

OVERVIEW

Qrganization

The company’s Equipment Operations generate revenues and
cash primarily from the sale of equipment to John Deere dealers
and distributors, The Equipment Qperations manufacture and
distribute a full line of agricultural equipment; a variety of
commercial and consumer equipment; and a broad range of
equipment for construction and forestry. The company’s
continuing Financial Services primarily provide credit services,
which mainly finance sales and leases of equipment by John Deere
dealers and trade receivables purchased from the Equipment
Operations. In addition, Financial Services offer certain crop
risk mitigation products and invest in wind energy generation.
The health care operations, included in Financial Services,
were classified as discontinued operations due to their sale

{see Note 2). These operations provided managed health care
services for the company and certain outside customers.

The information in the following discussion is presented in a
format that includes information grouped as consolidated,
Equipment Operations and Financial Services. The company
also views its operations as consisting of two geographic areas,
the U.S. and Canada, and outside the U.S. and Canada.

Trends and Economic Conditions
The company’s businesses are currently affected by the following
key trends and economic conditions. Worldwide farm conditions
remain positive, benefiting from growing economic prosperity,
healthy commodity prices and demand for renewable fuels.
Industry sales of farm machinery in the U.S. and Canada in
2008 are expected to be up 10 to 15 percent for the year, while
sales in Western Europe are forecast to be fiat to up slightly.
South American industry sales for 2008 are expected to increase
by 10 to 15 percent. The company’s agricultural equipment net
sales were up 18 percent for 2007 and are forecast to be up
approximately 17 percent in 2008. The company's commercial
and consumer equipment net sales were up 12 percent in 2007,
including about 9 percent from LESCO, Inc. (LESCO),
which was acquired in May 2007. Commercial and consumer
equipment sales are forecast to be up about 10 percent in 2008,
including about 8 percent from a full year’s sales from LESCO.
U.S. markets for construction and forestry equipment are
forecast to remain under pressure in 2008 due in large part to a
continuing slump in housing starts. The company’s construction
and forestry net sales decreased 13 percent in 2007 and are
forecast to be approximately flat in 2008. Net income for the
company's credit operations in 2008 is expected to improve to
approximately $375 million due to growth in the credit portfolio.
[tems of concern include the price of raw materials and
certain supply constraints, which have an impact on the results of
the company's equipment operations. The impacts of inflation
and sub-prime credit issues, which could affect interest rates and
the housing market, are also a concern. Producing engines that
continue to meet high performance standards, yet also comply
with increasingly stringent emissions regulations is one of the
company’s major priorities. In this regard, the company is

10

making and intends to continue to make the financial and
technical investment needed to produce engines in conformance
with global emissions rules for off-road diesel engines.

Potential changes in government sponsored farmer fancing
programs and supplier constraints in Brazil are a concern.

In addition, there is uncertainty over the direction of U.S. farm
legislation.

In 2007, the company benefited from an improving global
farm economy, while also experiencing weakening construction,
forestry, commercial and consumer sectors primarily as a result
of the U.S. housing downturn. As it maintains its focus on cost
and asset management, the company believes it has successtully
entered new markets, made important acquisitions and expanded
tts global customer base with advanced lines of products and
services. In addition to achieving strong financial performance,
the company in 2007 returned $1.9 billion to investors through
share repurchases and dividends.

2007 COMPARED WITH 2006

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Worldwide net income in 2007 was $1,822 million, or §4.00
per share diluted ($4.05 basic), compared with $1,694 million,
or $3.59 per share diluted ($3.63 basic), in 2006. Income from
continuing operations, which excludes the company’s discon-
tinued health care business (see Note 2), was also $1,822 million,
or $4.00 per share diluted ($4.05 basic), in 2007, compared
with $1,453 million, or $3.08 per share diluted ($3.11 basic)

in 2006. Net sales and revenues from continuing operations
increased 9 percent to $24,082 million in 2007, compared with
£22,148 million in 2006. Net sales of the Equipment Operations
increased 8 percent in 2007 to $21,489 million from $19,884
million last year. This included a positive effect for currency
translation and price changes of 5 percent. Net sales in the

U.S. and Canada were flat in 2007. Net sales outside the

U.S. and Canada increased by 27 percent, which included a
positive effect of 7 percent for currency translation. All per
share information reflects a two-for-one stock split effective
November 26, 2007 {see Note 1).

Worldwide Equipment Operations had an operating
profit of $2,318 million in 2007, compared with $1,905 million
in 2006. Higher operating profit was primarily due to improved
price realization and higher sales and production volumes,
Partially offsetting these factors were higher selling, administrative
and general expenses, increased raw material costs and higher
research and development costs.

The Equipment Operations’ net income was $1,429 million
in 2007, compared with $1,089 million in 2006. The same
operating factors mentioned above along with the expense
related to the repurchase of certain outstanding debt securities last
year and lower effective tax rates this year affected these results.

Net income of the company’s Financial Services operations
in 2007 decreased to $364 million, compared with $§584 million
in 2006, primanly due to the sale of the health care operations
last year. Income from the Financial Services continuing
operations in 2007 was also $364 million, compared with
$344 million in 2006. The increase was primarily a result of
growth in the credit portfolio, partially offset by increased selling,




administrative and general expenses and a higher provision
for credit losses. Additional information is presented in the
following discussion of the credit operations on this page.

Income from discontinued operations was $241 million in
2006, or $.51 per share diluted ($.52 basic), primarily due to the
sale of the health care operations last year.

The cost of sales to net sales ratio for 2007 was 75.6
percent, compared with 77.3 percent last year. The decrease was
primarily due to improved price realization and higher sales and
production volumes, partially offset by higher raw material costs.

Finance and interest income, and interest expense
increased this year primatily due to growth in the eredit
operations portfolio and higher financing rates. Other income
increased this year primarily from increased service revenues.
Research and development costs increased this year due to
increased spending in support of new products and the effect of
currency translation. Selling, administrative and general expenses
increased primarily due to growth and the effect of currency
transladon. Other operating expenses were higher primarily as
a result of increased cost of services, higher depreciation
expense on operating lease equipment and the effect of
currency translation, partially offset by the expense related to
the repurchase of outstanding notes last year (see Note 3).

The company has several defined benefit pension plans
and defined benefit health care and Iife insurance plans.

The company’s postretirement benefit costs for these plans in
2007 were $415 milhion, compared with $447 million in 2006.
The long-term expected return on plan assets, which is reflected
in these costs, was an expected gain of 8.3 percent in 2007 and
8.4 percent in 2006, or $838 million in 2007, compared with
$£795 million in 2006. The actual return was a gain of §1,503
million in 2007, compared with a gain of $1,364 million in 2006.
[n 2008, the expected return will be approximately 8.2 percent.
The company expects postretirement benefit costs in 2008 to
be lower, compared with 2007, primarily due to lower amorti-
zation of actuarial losses. The company makes any required
contributions to the plan assets under applicable regulations

and voluntary contributions from time to time based on the
company’s liquidity and ability to make tax-deductible
contributions. Total company contributions to the plans were
$646 million in 2007 and $866 million 1n 2006, which include
direct benefit payments for unfunded plans. These contributions
also included voluntary contributions to total plan assets of
approximately $520 milkion in 2007 and $760 million in 2006.
Total company contributions in 2008 are expected to be
approximately $428 million, including voluntary contributions
to plan assets of approximately $300 million. See the following
discussion of “Critical Accounting Policies” for more information
about postretirement benefit obligations.

BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA RESULTS

The following discussion relates to operating results by
reportable segment and geographic area. Operating profit is
income before external interest expense, certain foreign
exchange gains or losses, income taxes and corporate expenses.
However, operating profit of the credit segment includes the
effect of interest expense and foreign exchange gains or losses.

1

Worldwide Agricultural Equipment Operations

The agricultural equipment segment had an operating profit of
$1,443 million in 2007, compared with $882 million in 2006.
Net sales increased 18 percent this year due to higher volumes,
the favorable effects of currency translation and improved price
realization. The increase in operating profit was primarily due
to higher sales and production volumes, and improved price
realization, partially offset by higher selling, administrative and
general expenses attributable in large part to growth injtiatives
and currency translation. Also affecting the profit were increased
raw material costs and higher research and development costs,

Worldwide Commercial and Consumer Equipment Operations
The commercial and consumer equipment segment had an
operating profit of $304 million in 2007, compared with

$221 million in 2006. Net sales increased 12 percent for the
year, which included 9 percent from the LESCO operations.
The improved operating profit was primarily due to higher
sales volumes and improved price realization, partially offset
by higher selling, administrative and general expenses largely
attributed to the acquisitzon.

Worldwide Construction and Forestry Qperations

The construction and forestry segment had an operating profit
of $571 million in 2007, compared with $802 million in 2006.
Net sales decreased 13 percent for the year reflecting the
downturn in U.S. housing starts. The operating profit was
lower primarily due to lower sales and production volumes
and higher raw matenal costs, partially offset by positive price
realization. Last year’s results included expenses related to the
closure of a Canadian forestry equipment facility (see Note 3).

Worldwide Credit Operations

The operating profit of the credit operations was $548 million
in 2007, compared with $520 million in 2006. The increase

in operating profit was primarily due to growth in the credit
portfolio, partially offset by increased selling, administrative

and general expenses and a higher provision for credit losses.
Total revenues of the credit operations, including intercompany
revenues, increased 13 percent in 2007, primarily reflecting the
larger portfolio and higher average finance rates. The average
balance of receivables and leases financed was 8 percent higher
in 2007, compared with 2006. An increase in average borrowings
and higher interest rates in 2007 resulted in a 16 percent increase
in interest expense, compared with 2006. The credit operations’
ratio of earnings to fixed charges was 1.55 to 1 in 2007,
compared with 1.61 to 1 in 2006.

Equipment Operations in U.S. and Canada

The equipment operations in the U.5. and Canada had an
operating profit of $1,539 million in 2007, compared with
$1,445 million in 2006. The increase was primarily due to
improved price realization, partially offset by increased selling,
administrative and general expenses, higher raw material costs
and higher research and development costs. Net sales were
approximately the same in both years due to lower volumes,
offset by growth from acquisitions and higher price realization.
The physical volume decreased 5 percent excluding acquisitions,
compared with 2006.




Equipment Operations gutside U.S. and Canada

The equipment operations outside the U.S. and Canada had an
operating profit of $779 million in 2007, compared with $460
million in 2006. The increase was primarily due to the effects of
higher shipments and production volumes and improved price
realization, partially offset by increases in selling, administrative
and general expenses, increases in raw material costs and higher
research and development costs. Sales increased from higher
volumes, the effect of currency translation and improvements in
price realization. Net sales increased 27 percent in 2007, while
the physical volume increased 17 percent, compared with 2006.

MARKET CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOX

Company equipment sales are projected to increase by about

12 percent for the fiscal year and to be up approximately

25 percent for the first quarter of 2008, compared to the same
periods in 2007. LESCO operations are expected to account for
about 2 percentage points of the sales increase for the year and
3 points in the first quarter. The company’s net income is
forecast to be about $2.1 billion for 2008 and about $325 mullion
for the first quarter.

Agricultural Equipment. Driven by continuing strength in the
farm sector, worldwide sales of the company’s agricultural
equipment are expected to increase by about 17 percent for
fiscal year 2008. Included in the segment’s sales forecast is one
percentage point for currency translation and one point related
to the acquisition of Ningbo Benye Tractor & Automobile

| Manufacturing Co., Ltd., a Chinese-based tractor manufacturer

j purchased by the company in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Worldwide farm conditions remain quite positive,

benefiting from growing economic prosperity, healthy com-
modity prices and demand for renewable fuels. Relative to
consumption, global grain stocks such as wheat and corn are
continuing to run at or near thirty-year lows. The company’s
sales are expected to receive further support from the planned

introduction of a number of advanced new products globally.
On an industry basis, sales of fanm machinery in the US.
and Canada are forecast to be up 10 to 15 percent for the year,

due in part to a substantial jump in farm cash receipts.

Large tractors and combines are expected to pace the sales
improvement, while demand for cotton pickers is expected to
be lower. Industry sales in Western Europe are forecast to be
flat to up slightly for the year with greater increases expected in
Eastern Europe and the CIS (Commonwealth of Independent
States) countries, including Russia. These latter areas are
expected to continue experiencing strong growth due to rising
demand for productive farm machinery. South American
markets are expected to show further improvement in 2008,
with industry sales forecast to increase by 10 to 15 percent.
Farm machinery demand in Brazil, while receiving support from
strong commodity prices, may be tempered by uncertainties
over the status of government-backed financing programs.

The company anticipates its sales will be helped by an expanded
product line and additional production capacity associated with
the opening of a new tractor manufacturing facility in
Montenegro, Brazil.
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Commercial and Gonsumer Equipment. The company’s
commercial and consumer equipment sales are projected to be
up about 10 percent for the year, including about § percentage
points from a full year of LESCO sales. Segment sales, in
addition, are expected to benefit from new products, such as an
expanded line of innovative commercial mowing equipment.
Given the nature of the company’s commercial and consurmer
businesses, sales tend to have a high degree of sensitivity to
weather patterns and U.S. housing markets,
Construction and Forestry. U.S. markets for construction and
forestry equipment are forecast to remain under pressure in
2008 due in large part to a continuing slump in housing starts.
Non-residential construction is expected to remain flat at last
year's relatively strong levels. Pressure on the U.S. housing
market is expected to contribute to lower worldwide sales of
forestry equipment in 2008, though sales in Europe are forecast
to remain at strong levels. Despite this generally weak environ-
ment, the company's sales are expected to benefit from new
products and a return 1o factory production levels in closer
alignment with retail demand. Last year, the company made a
significant reduction in construction and forestry inventories,
which restrained production. In addition, the company’s sales
to the independent rental channel, which saw a large decline
in 2007, are expected to be flat in the coming year. For 2008,
the company’s worldwide sales of construction and forestry
equipment are forecast to be approximately equal to the
prior year.
Credit. Fiscal year 2008 net income for the company’s credit
operations is forecast to be approximately $375 million, with
the improvement driven by growth in the credit pertfolio.
SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT
Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform
At of 1995: Statements under “Overview,” *Market Conditions
and Outlook” and other statements herein that relate to future
operating periods are subject to important risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ matenially. Some of these
risks and uncertainties could affect particular lines of business,
while others could affect all of the company’s businesses.
Forward looking statements involve certain factors that
are subject to change, including for the company’s agricultural
equipment segment the many interrelated factors that affect
farmers’ confidence. These factors include worldwide demand
for agricultural products, world grain stocks, weather conditions
(including drought in the southeastern U.S.), soil conditions,
harvest yields, prices for commodities and livestock, crop
production expenses, availability of transport for crops, the
growth of non-food uses for some crops (including ethanol and
biodiesel production), real estate values, available acreage for
farming, the land ownership policies of various governments,
changes in government farm programs (including those that may
result from farm economic conditions in Brazil), international
reaction to such programs, uncertainties over passage of the
U.S. Farm Bill, global trade agreements, animal diseases and
their effects on poultry and beef consumption and prices
(including bovine spongiform encephalopathy, commonly
known as “mad cow” disease and avian flu}, crop pests and




diseases (including Asian rust), and the level of farm product
exports (including concerns about genetically modified organ-
isms). The success of the fall harvest and the prces realized by
farmers for their crops especially affect retail sales of agnicultural
equipment in the winter.

Factors affecting the outlook for the company’s commercial
and consumer equipment segrient include weather conditions,
general economic conditions, cusiomer profitability, consumer
confidence, consumer borrowing pattems, consumer purchasing
preferences, housing starts, infrastructure invesunent, and
spending by municipalities and golf courses.

The number of housing starts, interest rates and consumer
spending patterns are especially important to sales of the company’s
construction equipment. The levels of public and non-residential
construction also impact the results of the company’s construction
and forestry segment. Prices for pulp, lumber and structural
panels are important to sales of forestry equipment.

All of the company’s businesses and its reported results
are affected by general economic conditions in, and the political
and social stability of, the global markets in which the company
operates; production, design and technological difficuldes,
including capacity and supply constraints and prices, including
for supply commodities such as steel and rubber; the availability
and prices of strategically sourced materials, components and
whole goods; delays or disruptions in the company’s supply
chain due to weather or natural disasters; start-up of new plants
and new products; the success of new product initiatives and
customer acceptance of new products; oil and energy prices
and supplies; inflation and deflation rates, interest rate levels
and foreign currency exchange rates; the availability and cost of
freight; trade, monetary and fiscal policies of various countries,
wars and other intermational conflicts and the threat thereof;
actions by the U.S. Federal Reserve Board and other central
banks; actions by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission;
actions by environmental regulatory agencies, including those
related to engine emissions and the risk of global warming;
actions by other regulatory bodies; actions by rating agencies;
capital market disruptions; customer borrowing and repayment
practices, the number and size of customer loan delinquencies
and defaults, and the sub-prime credit market crisis; actions of
competitors in the various industries in which the company
competes, particularly price discounting; dealer practices
especially as to levels of new and used field inventories; labor
relations; changes to accounting standards; changes in tax rates;
the effects of, or response to, terrorism; and changes in laws and
regulations affecting the sectors in which the company operates.
The spread of major epidemics (including influenza, SARS,
fevers and other viruses) also could affect company results.
Company results are also affected by changes in the level of
employee retirement benefits, changes in market values of
investment assets and the level of interest rates, which impact
retirement benefit costs, and significant changes in health care
costs. Other factors that could affect results are changes in
company declared dividends, acquisitions and divestitures of
businesses and common stock issuances and repurchases.

The company’s outlook is based upon assumptions
relating to the factors described above, which are sometimes
based upon estimates and data prepared by government agencies.
Such estimates and data are often revised. The company, except
as required by law, undertakes no obligation to update or revise
its outlook, whether as a result of new developments or
otherwise. Further information concerning the company and
its businesses, including factors that potentially could materially
affect the company’s financial results, is included in other filings
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

2006 COMPARED WITH 2005

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Worldwide net income in 2006 was $1,694 million, or $3.59
per share diluted {$3.63 basic), compared with $1,447 million,
or $2.94 per share diluted {$2.97 basic), in 2005. Income from
continuing operations, which excludes the company’s discon-
tinued health care business (see Note 2), was $1,453 mullion,

or §3.08 per share diluted ($3.11 basic) in 2006, compared to
$1,414 million, or $2.87 per share diluted (82.90 basic) in 2005.
Net sales and revenues from continuing operations increased

5 percent to $22,148 million in 2006, compared with $21,191
million in 2005. Net sales of the Equipment Operations
increased 2 percent in 2006 to $19,884 million from $19,401
million in 2005. This included a positive effect for price changes
of 3 percent, Equipment net sales in the U.S. and Canada
increased 3 percent in 2006. Net sales outside the U.S. and
Canada increased by 2 percent, which included a negative
effect of 1 percent for currency translation.

Worldwide Equipment Operations had an operating profit
of $1,905 million in 2006, compared with $1,842 nullion in 2005.
Higher operating profit was primarily due to improved price
realization and lower retirement benefit costs. Partially offsetting
these factors were increased raw marerial costs, higher selling
and administrative expenses, the impact of lower shipping
volumes and increased spending for research and development.

The Equipment Operations’ net income was $1,089 million
in 2006, compared with $1,096 million in 2005. The same
operating factors mentioned above along with the expense
related to the repurchase of certain outstanding debt securities
and higher effective tax rates in 2006 affected these results.

Net income of the company’s Financial Services
operations in 2006 increased to $584 million, compared with
£345 million in 2005, primarily due to the sale of the health
care operations. Income from the Financial Services continuing
operations in 2006 was $344 million, compared with §312
million in 2005. The increase was primarily a result of growth
in the credit portfolio, partially offset by a higher provision
for credit losses. Additional information is presented in the
following discussion of the credit operations.

Income from discontinued operations was $241 million
in 2006, or $.51 per share diluted ($.52 basic), compared with
$33 million, or $.07 per share diluted {§.07 basic), in 2005.

The increase was primanly due to the previously mentioned
sale of the health care operations.




The cost of sales to net sales ratio for 2006 was 77.3
percent, compared with 78.2 percent in 2005. The decrease
was primarily due to improved price realization and lower
retirement benefit costs, partially offset by higher raw material
costs and lower shipping volumes.

Finance and interest income, and interest expense increased
in 2006 primarily due to growth in the credit operations
portfolio and higher financing rates. Other income increased
in 2006 primarily due to investment income from marketable
securities, insurance premiums for extended warranties, crop
insurance commissions and service income. Research and
development costs increased in 2006 due to a large number
of new products. Selling, administrative and general expenses
increased primarily due to growth, share-based compensation
expense and the provision for credit losses. Other operating
expenses were higher primarily as a result of the expense related
to the repurchase of outstanding notes (see Note 3), extended
warranty claims, depreciation related to a higher level of
equipment on operating leases, and service expenses.

The company has several defined benefit pension plans
and defined benefit health care and life insurance plans.

The company’s postretirement benefit costs for these plans in
2006 were $447 million, compared with $538 million 1n 2005.
The long-term expected return on plan assets, which is reflected
in these costs, was an expected gain of 8.4 percent in 2006 and

" 8.5 percent in 2005, or $795 million in 2006, compared with

$744 million in 2005. The actual return was a gain of $1,364
million in 2006, compared with a gain of $1,057 million in 2005.
Total company contributions to the plans were $866 million in
2006 and $859 million in 2005, which include direct benefit
payments for unfunded plans. These contributions also included
voluntary contributions to the U.S. plan assets of $739 million
in 2006 and $556 million in 2005.

BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA RESULTS

Worldwide Agricultural Equipment Operations

The agricultural equipment segment had an operating profit

of $882 million in 2006, compared with $970 million in 2005.
Net sales decreased 3 percent in 2006 due to lower shipments,
partially offset by improved price realization. The decrease in
operating profit was primarily due to the impact of lower
shipments and production volumes, as well as higher selling

and administrative expenses and research and development costs.
Partially offsetting these factors were improved price realization
and lower retirement benefit costs.

Worldwide Commercial and Gonsumer Equipment Operaticns
The conunercial and consumer equipment segment had an
operating profit of $221 million in 2006, compared with
$183 mullion in 2005. Net sales increased 8 percent in 20006,
primarily due to higher sales in the landscapes operations.
The improved operating profit was primarily due to the
improved profitability of the landscapes operations and lower
retirement benefit costs.

Worldwide Construction and Forestry Operations

The construction and forestry segment had an operating profit
of $802 million in 2006, compared with $689 million in 2005.
Net sales increased 10 percent in 2006, reflecting strong activity
at the retail level. The operating profit improvement was
primarily due to improved price realization, margin on
increased shipments and efficiencies from stronger production
volumes. These factors were partially offset by higher material
costs, expenses to close a facility in Canada (see Note 3) and
higher research and development costs.

Worldwide Credit Operations

The operating profit of the credit operations was $520 million
in 2006, compared with $491 million in 20¢5. The increase

in operating profit was primarily due to growth in the credit
portfolio, partially offset by a higher provision for credit losses
and lower financing spreads. Total revenues of the credit
operations, including intercompany revenues, increased

24 percent in 2006, primarily reflecting the larger portfolio
and higher average finance rates. The average balance of
receivables and leases financed was 15 percent higher in 2006,
compared with 2005. An increase in average borrowings and
higher interest rates in 2006 resulted in a 44 percent increase
in interest expense, compared with 2005. The larger average
portfolio financed on the balance sheet and the higher average
borrowings were primarily due to an increase in securitizations
of retail notes accounted for as secured borrowings rather

than sales of teceivables. The credit operations’ ratio of eamings
to fixed charges was 1.61 to 1 in 2006, compared with 1.86 to
1 in 2005.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The discussion of capital resources and liquidity has been
organized to review separately, where appropriate, the company’s
consolidated totals, Equipment Operations and Financial
Services operations.

CONSOLIDATED

Positive cash flows from consolidated operating activities in
2007 were $2,759 million. This resulted primarily from net
income adjusted for non-cash provisions, an increase in accounts
payable and accrued expenses and a decrease in trade receivables,
which were partially offset by an increase in inventories and a
decrease in retirement benefit accruals. Cash outflows from
investing activities were §1,933 million in 2007, primanly due
to the cost of financing receivables and equipment on operating
leases exceeding collections of financing receivables and the
proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases by §1,160
million, purchases of property and equipment of $1,023 million
and acquisitions of businesses for $189 million, which were
partially offset by proceeds from maturities and sales of
marketable securities exceeding the cost of marketable securities
purchased by $207 million, and the proceeds from sales of
financing receivables of $141 million. Cash outflows from
financing activities were $281 million in 2007, primarly due to
repurchases of common stock of $1,518 million and dividends
paid of $387 million, which were partially offset by an increase
in borrowings of $1,247 million, proceeds from issuance of




common stock of $286 million (resulting from the exercise
of stock options) and excess tax benefits from share-based
compensation of $102 million. Cash and cash equivalents also
increased $591 million during 2007.

Over the last three years, operating activites have
provided an aggregate of $4,94% million in cash. In addition,
increases in borrowings were $6,185 million, proceeds from
issuance of common stock were $767 million and the proceeds
from sales of businesses were $567 million. The aggregate
amount of these cash flows was used mainly to fund receivable
and lease acquisitions, which exceeded collections and the
proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases by
$4,797 million, repurchase common stock for $3,736 million,
tund purchases of property and equipment of $2,301 miltion,
purchase marketable securities, which exceeded proceeds from
maturities and sales of marketable securities by $1,564 million,
pay dividends to stockholders of $1,025 million and acquire
businesses for $415 million. Cash and cash equivalents also
decreased $903 million over the three-year period.

Sources of liquidity for the company include cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities, funds from operations, the
issuance of commercial paper and term debt, the securitization
of retail notes and committed and uncommitted bank lines
of credit.

Because of the multiple funding sources that have been and
continue to be available, the company expects to have sufficient
sources of liquidity to meet its funding needs. The company’s
commercial paper outstanding at October 31, 2007 and 2006
was approximately $2.8 billion and $2.6 billion, respectively,
while the total cash and cash equivalents and marketable
securities position was $3.9 billion and $3.5 billion, respectively.
The company has for many years accessed diverse funding
sources, including short-term and long-term unsecured debt
capital markets globaily, as well as public and private
securitization markets in the U.S. and Canada.

Lines of Credit. The company also has access to bank lines
of credit with various banks throughout the world. Some of the
lines are available to both Deere & Company and John Deere
Capital Corporation (Capital Corporation). Worldwide lines of
credit totaled $3,894 million at October 31, 2007, $904 million
of which were unused. For the purpose of computing unused
credit lines, commercial paper and short-term bank borrowings,
excluding secured borrowings and the current portion of long-
term borrowings, were considered to constitute utilization.
Included in the total credit lines at October 31, 2007 was a
long-term credit facility agreement of $3.75 billion, expiring in
February 2012. The credit agreement requires the Capital
Corporation to maintain its consolidated ratio of earnings to
fixed charges at not less than 1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter and
the ratio of senior debt, excluding securitization indebtedness,
to capital base (total subordinated debt and stockholder's equity
excluding accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)) at not
more than 9.5 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter. The credit
agreement also requires the Equipment Operations to maintain
a ratio of total debt to total capital (total debt and stockholders’
equity excluding accurnulated other comprehensive income
{loss)) of 65 percent or less at the end of each fiscal quarter

according to accounting principles generally accepted in the
U.S. in effect at October 31, 2006. Under this provision, the
company’s excess equity capacity and retained earnings balance
free of restriction at Qctober 31, 2007 was $6,661 million.
Alternatively under this provision, the Equipment Operations
had the capacity to incur additional debt of $12,370 million at
October 31, 2007. All of these requirements of the credit
agreement have been met during the periods included in the
consolidated financial statements,

Debt Ratings. To access public debt capital markets, the
company relies on credit rating agencies to assign short-term
and long-term credit ratings to the company’s securities as an
indicator of credit quality for fixed income investors. A security
rating is not a recommendation by the rating agency to buy,
sell or hold company securities. A credit rating agency may
change or withdraw company ratings based on its assessment
of the company’s current and future ability to meet interest and
principal repayment obligations. Each agency’s rating should be
evaluated independently. Lower credit ratings generally result
in higher borrowing costs and reduced access to debt capital
markets. The senior long-term and short-term debt ratings and
outlook currently assigned to unsecured company securities by
the rating agencies engaged by the company are as follows:

Senior
Long-Term Short-Term Outlogk
Moody's Investors.................. AZ Prime-1 Stabie
Service, Inc.
Standard & Poor's ... A A-1 Stable

Trade accounts and notes receivable primarily arise
from sales of goods to independent dealers. Trade receivables
increased by $17 million in 2007. The ratio of trade accounts
and notes receivable at October 31 to fiscal year net sales was
14 percent in 2007, compared with 15 percent in 2006.
Total worldwide agricultural equipment trade receivables
increased $220 million, commercial and consumer equipment
receivables decreased $52 million and construction and forestry
receivables decreased $151 million. The collection period for
trade receivables averages less than 12 months. The percentage of
trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding 12 months
was 3 percent at both October 31, 2007 and 2006.
Stockholders” equity was $7,156 million at October 31,
2007, compared with $7,491 million at October 31, 2006.
The decrease of $335 million resulted primarily from an
increase in treasury stock of $1,342 million, an incremental
charge to accumulated other comprehensive income of $1,091
million resulting from the adoption of FASB Statement No. 158,
Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans (see Note 5) and dividends declared
of $409 million. These items were partially offset by net income
of $1,822 million, an increase in commen stock of $574 million
and an increase in the cumulative translation adjustment of
$329 million. Common stock increased primarily due to the
exercise of stock options and a $268 million transter from
retained earnings for the par value relating to a stock split in
the form of a 100 percent stock dividend (see Note 23).
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The cash flows from discontinued operations included in
the consolidated cash flows were not material except for the
cash inflow from the sale of the health care operations (net of
cash sold) of approximately $440 million included in the
proceeds from sales of businesses in 2006.

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS

The company's equipment businesses are capital intensive and
are subject to seasonal variations in financing requirements for
inventories and certain receivables from dealers. The Equipment
Operations sell most of their trade receivables to the company's
credit operations. As a result, there are relatively small seasonal
variations in the financing requirements of the Equipment
Operations. To the extent necessary, funds provided from
operations are supplemented by external financing sources.

Cash provided by operating activities of the Equipment
Operations during 2007, including intercompany cash flows,
was $2,689 million primarily due to net income adjusted for
non-cash provisions and an increase in accounts payable and
accrued expenses, partially offset by a decrease tn retirement
benefit accruals.

Ower the last three years, these operating activities,
including intercompany cash flows, have provided an aggregate
of $5,661 million in cash.

Trade receivables held by the Equipment Operations
increased by $42 million during 2007. The Equipment
Operations sell a significant portion of their trade receivables to
the credit operations (see previous consolidated discussion).

Inventories increased by $380 million in 2007. Most of
these inventories are valued on the last-in, first-out {LIFO)
method. The ratios of inventories on 2 first-in, first-out (FIFO)
basis (see Note 15), which approximates current cost, to fiscal
year cost of sales were 22 percent and 20 percent at QOctober 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Total interest-bearing debt of the Equipment Operations
was $2,103 million at the end of 2007, compared with §2,252
million at the end of 2006 and $3,101 nullion at the end of 2005.
The ratio of total debt to total capital {total interest-bearing
debt and stockholders’ equity) at the end of 2007, 2006 and
2005 was 23 percent, 23 percent and 31 percent, respectively.

Purchases of property and equipment for the Equipment
Operations in 2007 were $557 million, compared with $493
million in 2006. Capital expenditures in 2008 are estimated to
be approximately $600 million to $700 million.

FINANCGIAL SERVIGES

The Financial Services’ credit operations rely on their ability to

raise substantial amounts of funds to finance their receivable and
lease portfolios. Their primary sources of funds for this purpose

are a combination of commercial paper, term debt, securitization

of retail notes and equity capital.

Cash flows from the company’s Financial Services
operating activities, including intercompany cash flows, were
$851 million in 2007. Cash provided by financing activities
totaled $900 million in 2007, representing primarily a $1,463
million increase in external borrowings, partially offset by the
payment of $588 million of dividends to Deere & Company.
The cash provided by operating and financing activities was
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used primarily to increase receivables and leases. Cash used by
investing activities totaled $1,720 million in 2007, primarily due
to the cost of financing receivables and equipment on operating
leases exceeding collections of financing receivables and the
proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases by $1,487
million, and purchases of property and equipment of $465 mullion.
Cash and cash equivalents also increased $48 million.

Over the last three years, the Financial Services operating
activities, including intercompany cash flows, have provided
$2,229 million in cash. In addition, an increase in borrowings of
$6,064 million and proceeds from sales of financing receivables
of $502 million provided cash inflows. These amounts have
been used mainly to fund receivable and lease acquisitions,
which exceeded collections and the proceeds from sales of
equipment on operating leases by $7,127 million, pay dividends
to Deere & Company of $862 million and fund purchases of
property and equipment of $784 million. Cash and cash
equivalents also decreased $7 million over the three-year period.

Receivables and leases increased by $1,741 million in
2007, compared with 2006. Acquisition volumes of receivables
and leases increased 1 percent in 2007, compared with 2006.
The volumes of financing leases, revolving charge accounts,
retail notes and operating leases increased approximately
15 percent, 8 percent, 7 percent and 2 percent, while wholesale
notes, operating loans and trade receivables were 9 percent,

4 percent and 1 percent lower, respectively. At October 31,
2007 and 2006, net receivables and leases administered, which
include receivables previously sold but still administered, were
$22,543 million and $21,547 million, respectively.

Total external interest-bearing debt of the credit
operations was $19,665 million at the end of 2007, compared
with $17,453 million at the end of 2006 and $15,522 million at
the end of 2005. Included in this debt are secured borrowings
of $2,344 million at the end of 2007, $2,403 million at the end
of 2006 and $1,474 million at the end of 2005. Total external
borrowings have increased generally corresponding with the
level of the receivable and lease portfolio, the level of cash and
cash equivalents and the change in payables owed to the
Equipment Operations. The credic subsidiaries’ ratio of total
interest-bearing debt to total stockholder’s equity was 8.2 to 1
at the end of 2007, 7.1 to 1 at the end of 2006 and 7.2 to 1 at
the end of 2005.

The credit operations have utilized a revolving multi-bank
conduit facility to securitize floating rate retail notes that were
structured as either sales or secured borrowings (see Note 12).

In September 2007, the company amended the facility and
simultaneously repurchased $264 million of retail notes previously
sold into the facility and elected not to renew the facility for any
future securitizations. At Qctober 31, 2007, $657 million of
securitized retail notes remained in the facility relating only to
secured borrowings, which are recorded on the balance sheet.
These secured borrowings will be liquidated as payments on the
retail notes are collected.

During 2007, the credit operations issued $4,284 million
and retired $3,129 million of long-term borrowings, which
were primarily medium-term notes.




Purchases of property and equipment for Financial Services
in 2007 were §465 million, compared with $273 million in 2006,
primanly related to investments in wind energy generation.
Capital expenditures for 2008 are estimated to be approximately
$550 million, also primarily related to investinents in wind
energy generation.

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The company's credit operations offer crop insurance products
through a managing general agency agreement (Agreement)
with an insurance company (Insurance Carrier) rated
“Excellent” by A.M. Best Company. The credit operations
have guaranteed cettain obligations under the Agreement,
including the obligation to pay the Insurance Carrier for any
uncollected premiums. At October 31, 2007, the maximum
exposure for uncollected premiums was approximately

$57 million. Substantially all of the crop insurance risk under
the Agreement has been mitigated by a syndicate of private
reinsurance companies. In the event of a widespread catastrophic
crop failure throughout the U.S. and the default of all the
reinsurance companies on their obligations, the company would
be required to reimburse the Insurance Carrier approximately
$489 million at October 31, 2007. The company believes the
likelihood of this event is substantially remote.

At October 31, 2007, the company had approximately
$190 million of guarantees issued primarily to banks outside the
U.S. related to third-party receivables for the retail financing
of John Deere equipment. The company may recover a portion
of any required payments incurred under these agreements from
repossession of the equipment collateralizing the receivables.
The maximum remaining term of the receivables guaranteed at
October 31, 2007 was approximately eight years.

Prior to 2005, the company’s credit operations periodi-
cally sold retail notes to special purpose entities (SPEs) in
securitization transactions. The credit operations have used
these SPEs in a manner consistent with conventional practices
in the securitization industry to isolate the retail notes for the
benefit of securitization investors. The use of the SPEs has
enabled these operations to access the historically liquid and
efficient securitization markets for the sales of these types of
financial assets. The amounts of funding the company chooses
to obtain from securitizations reflect such factors as capital
marker accessibility, relative costs of funding sources and assets
available for securitization. The company’s total exposure to
recourse provisions related to securitized retail notes, which
were sold in prior periods, was $20 million and the total
assets held by the SPEs related to these secuninzations were
$120 million at October 31, 2007.

AGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The payment schedule for the company’s contractual obligations
at Qctober 31, 2007 in millions of dollars 15 as follows:

Less More
than 283 485 than
Total 1 year years  years  Syears

Debt*
Equipment Operations .. $ 2,061 $ 130 $ 321 $1,610
Financial Services™*..... 19,588 8515 7025 $3,003 1,055
Total....ooooviinenn. 21,659 8,645 7346 3,003 2,665
Interest on debt............... 3,857 941 1,102 557 1,257
Purchase obligations........ 3,212 3172 26 9 5
Operating leases.............. 358 100 120 58 80
Capital 12ases........ccc..n. 29 3 6 4 16
Total ovvrrsverieneeerens $29,115 $12,861 $8,600 $3,631 $4,023

Principal payments.

** Notes payable of $2 344 million classified as short-term on the balance sheet
related to the securitization of retail notes are included in this table based on the
expected payment schedule (see Note 18).

For additional information regarding pension and other
postretirement employee benefit obligations, short-term
borrowings, long-term borrowings and lease obligations,
see Notes 5, 18, 20 and 21, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of the company’s consolidated financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabiliries,
revenues and expenses. Changes in these estimates and assunip-
tions could have a significant effect on the financial stacements.
The accounting policies below are those management believes are
the most critical to the preparation of the company’s financial
statements and require the most difficult, subjective or complex
Jjudgments. The company’s other accounting policies are
described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sales Incentives
At the time a sale to a dealer is recognized, the company records
an estimate of the future sales incentive costs for allowances and
financing programs that will be due when the dealer sells the
equipment to a retail customer. The estimate is based on
historical data, announced incentive programs, field inventory
levels and settlement volumes, The final cost of these programs
and the amount of accrual required for a specific sale is fully
determined when the dealer sells the equipment to the retail
customer. This is due to numerous programs available at any
particular time and new programs that may be announced after
the company records the sale. Changes in the mix and types of
programs affect these estimates, which are reviewed quarterly.
The sales incentive accruals at QOctober 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 were $711 million, $629 million and $592 million,
respectively. The increases in 2007 and 2006 were primarily
due to the increases in sales.
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The estimation of the sales incentive accrual is impacted
by many assumptions. One of the key assumptions is the
historical percentage of sales incentive costs to settlements from
dealers. Over the last five fiscal years, this percent has varied by
approximately plus or minus .7 percent, compared to the
average sales incentive costs to settlements percentage during
that period. Holding other assumptions constant, if this cost
expetience percentage were to increase or decrease .7 percent,
the sales incentive accrual at October 31, 2007 would increase
or decrease by approximately $40 million.

Product Warranties

At the time a sale to a dealer is recognized, the company
records the estimated future warranty costs. The company
generally determines its total warranty lability by applying
historical claims rate experience to the estimated amount of
equipment that has been sold and is still under warranty based
on dealer inventories and retail sales. The historical claims rate
is primarily determined by a review of five-year claims costs
and consideration of current quality developments. Variances in
claims experience and the type of warranty programs affect
these estimates, which are reviewed quarterly.

The product warranty accruals at October 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 were $549 million, $507 million and $535 million,
respectively. The increase in 2007, compared to 2006, was
primarily due to an increase in sales volume. The decrease in
2006 was due to a higher level of special warranty programs
in 2005.

Estimates used to determine the product warranty accruals
are significantly affected by the historical percentage of warranty
claims costs to sales. Qver the last five fiscal years, this loss
experience percent has varied by approximately plus or minus
.05 percent, compared to the average warranty costs to sales
percentage during that period. Holding other assumptions constant,
if this estimated cost experience percentage were to increase or
decrease .05 percent, the warranty accrual at October 31, 2007
would increase or decrease by approximately $15 million.

Postretirement Benefit Obligations

Pension obligations and other postretirement employee

benefit (OPEB) obligations are based on various assumptions
used by the company’s actuaries in calculating these amounts.
These assumptions include discount rates, health care cost trend
rates, expected return on plan assets, compensation increases,
retirement rates, mortality rates and other factors. Actual results
that differ from the assumptions and changes in assumptions
affect future expenses and obligations.

The pension assets, net of pension liabilities, recognized
on the balance sheet at October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
$1,467 mullion, $1,945 million and $1,986 mullion, respectively,
The OPEB liabilities on these same dates were $3,065 million,
$1,985 million and $2,455 million, respectively. The decrease
in the pension net assets and the increase in the OPEB liabilines
on the balance sheet in 2007 were primarily due to the adoption
in 2007 of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension

and Other Postretirement Plans (see Note 5). This standard
required unrecognized gains or losses relating to postretirement
benefit obligations to be recorded on the consolidated balance
sheet with a corresponding charge or credit to stockholders’
equity.

The effect of hypothetical changes to selected assumptions
on the company’s major U. S. retirement benefit plans would
be as follows in mullions of dollars:

October 31, 2007 2008

Increase Increase
Percentage (Decrease} {Decrease)
Assumptions Change PBO/APBO® Expense
Pension
Discount rate™ ..o +/-.5 $ (362)/396 $ (20)/24
Expected return
Lo Ta R PO ot (41)/4
OPEB
Discount rate™ ......ccocoevuirnne +/-.5 (312)/332 (46)/54
Expected return
ONasSets .ovveeceisinen, +D (12)/12
Health care cost
trend rate*™* ......coee e +-1.0 515/(432) 118/(99)

* Projected benefit obligation (PBO) for penasion plans and accumulated posiretirement
benefit obligation (APBQ) for OQPEB plans.
** Pretax impact on service cost, interest cost and amortization of gains or losses,

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses represents an estimate of the
losses expected from the company’s receivable portfolio.

The level of the allowance is based on many quantitative and
qualitative factors, including historical loss experience by
product category, portfolio duration, delinquency trends,
economic condittons and credit risk quality. The adequacy

of the allowance is assessed quarterly. Different assumptions or
changes in economic conditions would result in changes to the
allowance for credit losses and the provision for credit losses.

The rotal allowance for credit losses at October 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 was $236 million, $217 million and $194 million,
respectively. The increases in 2007 and 2006 were primarily
due to growth in the receivable portfolio.

The assumptions used in evaluating the company’s
exposure to credit losses involve estimates and significant
judgment. The historical loss experience on the receivable
portfolio represents one of the key assumptions involved in
determining the allowance for credit losses. Over the last five
fiscal years, the average loss experience has fluctuated between
2 basis points and 18 basis points in any given fiscal year over
the applicable prior period. Holding other estimates constant,
a 5 basis point increase or decrease in estimated loss expenience
on the receivable portfolic would result in an increase or

decrease of approximately $10 million to the allowance for
credit losses at October 31, 2007.



Operating Lease Residual Values

The carrying value of equipment on operating leases is affected
by the estimared fair values of the equipment at the end of the
lease (residual values). Upon termination of the lease, the
equipment is either purchased by the lessee or sold to a third
party, in which case the company may record a gain or 2 loss
for the difference between the estimated residual value and
the sales price. The residual values are dependent on current
econotmnic conditions and are reviewed quarterly. Changes in
residual value assumptions would affect the amount of
depreciation expense and the amount of investment in
equipment on operating leases.

The total operating lease residual values at Qctober 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 were $1,072 million, $917 million and
$812 million, respectively. The increases in 2007 and 2006
were primarily due to the higher levels of operating leases.

Estimates used in determining end of lease market values
for equipment on operating leases significantly impact the
amount and uming of depreciation expense. If future market
values for this equipment were to decrease 5 percent from the
company’s present estimates, the total impact would be to
increase the company’s annual depreciation for equipment on
operating leases by approximately $18 million.

FINANGIAL INSTRUMENT RISK INFORMATION

The company is naturally exposed to various interest rate and
foreign currency risks. As a result, the company enters into
derivative transacttons to manage certain of these exposures that
arise in the normal course of business and not for the purpose of
creating speculative posttions or trading. The company’s credit
operations manage the relationship of the types and amounts of
their funding sources to their receivable and lease portfolio in
an effort to diminish risk due to interest rate and foreign
currency fluctuations, while responding to favorable financing
opportunities. Accordingly, from time to time, these operations
enter into interest rate swap agreements to manage their interest
rate exposure. The company also has foreign currency exposures
at some of its foreign and domestic operations related to buying,
selling and financing in currencies other than the local currencies.
The company has entered into agreements related to the
management of these currency transaction risks. The credit risk
under these interest rate and foreign currency agreements is not
considered to be significant.

Interest Rate Risk

Quarterly, the company uses a combination of cash low models
to assess the sensitivity of its financial instruments with interest
rate exposure to changes in market interest rates. The models
calculate the effect of adjusting interest rates as follows,

Cash flows for financing receivables are discounted at the
current prevailing rate for each receivable portfolio. Cash flows
for marketable securities are primanly discounted at the treasury
yield curve. Cash flows for borrowings are discounted at the
treasury vield curve plus a market credit spread for similarly
rated borrowers. Cash flows for securitized borrowings are
discounted at the industrial composite bond curve for similarly
rated borrowers. Cash flows for interest rate swaps are projected
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and discounted using forecasted rates from the swap yield curve
at the repricing dates. The net loss in these financial instruments’
fair values which would be caused by increasing the interest
rates by 10 percent from the market rates at October 31, 2007
and 2006 would have been approximately $22 million and

$14 million, respectively.

Foreign Currency Risk
In the Equipment Operations, it is the company’s practice to
hedge significant currency exposures. Worldwide foreign
currency exposures are reviewed quarterly. Based on the
Equipment Operations’ anticipated and committed foreign
currency cash inflows and outflows for the next twelve months
and the foreign currency derivatives at year end, the company
estimates that a hypothetical 10 percent weakening of the
U.S. dollar relative to other currencies through 2008 would
decrease the 2008 expected net cash inflows by $77 mililion.
A last year end, a hypothetical 10 percent strengthening of the
U.S. dollar under similar assumptions and calculations indicated a
potential $32 million adverse effect on the 2007 net cash inflows.
. In the Financial Services operations, the company’s
policy is to hedge the foreign currency nisk if the currency of
the borrowings does not match the currency of the receivable
portfolio. As a result, a hypothetical 10 percent adverse change
in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to all other foreign
currencies would not have a matenial effect on the Financial
Services cash flows.




MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Deere & Company is responsible for
establishing and nuintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. Deere & Company’s internal control system
was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

- All internal control systems, no matter how well designed,
have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2007,
using the ctiteria set forth in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. Based on that assessment,
management believes that, as of October 31, 2007, the company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective.

The company’s independent registered public accounting
firm has issued an audit report on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report
appears below.

December 18, 2007

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Deere & Company:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Deere & Company and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
Qctober 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of
consolidated income, changes in consolidated stockholders’
equity, and consolidated cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended October 31, 2007. We also have audited
the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
October 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The
Company’s management is responsible for these financial
statements, for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Intemal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement and
whether effective internal control over financtal reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Qur audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a
process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effective-
ness of the internal control over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of October 31, 2007 and
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended October 31, 2007,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of October 31, 2007, based
on the criteria established in Intemal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission,

As discussed in Notes 1 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board {“FASB”) Statement No. 158,
Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R), which changed its method of
accounting for pension and other postretirement benefits as
of October 31, 2007.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, [linois
December 18, 2007




DEERE & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME
For the Years Ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(In millions of dollars and shares except per share amounts)

2007 2008 2005
Net Sales and Revenues .
NEESAIBS ..ottt ettt ettt es st ettt er et et en et n et en et s e ne et neen $21489.1 $19,884.0 $19,401.4
FInance and INtBIESE IMCOME .ot eeste e et s e rss bt bbbtk en et e s e bsn e tsee 2,054.8 1,776.8 1,438.5
OB INCOME ..ottt err et bbb bbb bbbttt st bttt b s e ne b st ettt bt r s s 538.3 487.0 348.9
TOMAD e bttt e 240822 22,1478 21,190.8
Costs and Expenses '
COSTOF SAIBS .. vevvvrcr i ee et es et sttt e ee s bbb Rt ekt AR et R R e E s 16,252.8 15,362.0 15179.3
Research and development eXpenses.........cccoonne 816.8 7258 677.3
Selling, administrative and general expenses 2,820.8 23238 2,086.1
[NtErest EXPBNSE ...ccccee v 1,151.2 10175 761.0
Oher OPEIALING BXPEINISES ... evvcerrir i eeties et ettt rab e b s bbbt bbbt bbb 565.1 544.8 380.6
0 U U OO 21,406.7 19,974.0 19,084.3
Income of Consolidated Group before INCOME TAKES ... 26755 21738 2,106.5
ProviSion FOr INCOME TAXES ov.vvvveveieieee ettt ceaeceias e e et ee e as b st s s bttt en b ee bbbt er b ep s 883.0 741.6 698.6
Income of Consolidated GrOUP.........c.cooccciiiiii e s 1,792.5 1,432.2 1,407.9
Equity in Income of Uncongolidated AfflIEES .......cciivec i e b 29.2 21.0 6.1
tncome from Continuing Operations ...................... 1,453.2 1,414.0
income from Discontinued Operations 240.6 328
NEEIMCOME ... et et bbb bt 4 et s e e enet e bbb $ 1,693.8 $ 14468
Per Share Data*
Basic:
Continuing operations .........cuereernnemniscie e eeees $ 405 § 3N $ 2.90
Discontinued operations 52 07
NEEIRICOITIE ..ot eeres e et e e b s b e b 208+ b ettt e ees et e e b e bbb r s $ 405 $ 363 $ 2.97
Dituted:
CONtNUING OPETATIOMS 1. vvc. v eceeeereee et eer st b bbbt s bbb bbb et bt $ 400 § 308 $ 2.87
Discontinued operations 51 07
INETINCOMIE Lo sevetie e et rer b st rs bbb bR s bbb s s bbbt b s e 3 4.00 $ 359 $ 2.94
DIVIAENAS QEEIAMEH .....vovviveri ettt ettt sttt ees sttt as s ense s et en s e s e $ 9 § 78 $ 60,
Average Shares dutstanding*
BASIC 11 vttt s et et e bR bR e E R et bt s TSR ers e 448.3 466.8 486.6
DHIUEB 11 et ettt sttt 1kt s e ettt e et eseeca ettt eR R r et rmsn e et et ennes 455.0 4716 4929

" Adjusted for two-for-one stock split sffective November 26, 2007.
The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

21




DEeERE & COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEET
As of October 31, 2007 and 2006
(In millions of dollars except per share amounts)

2007

ASSETS i
Cash and CASH BQUIVAIEITES. ..ot sssssssreseeseseeeees et sest bbb bbb st bbb $ 22786
Marketable securities 1,623.3
Receivables from unconsolidated affiliates 296
Trade accounts and notes receivable - net 3,055.0
FINANGING rECBIVEIIES = MBL ... vevr ottt renets s ems b bt e 15,631.2
Restricted financing fECEIVADIES - NEL. ... . oot s essa s st 2,2890
Other recaivables .........coceee e 596.3
Equipment on OPErating [BASES = NMEL ... vceree e st eas bbb ot sb bbbt 1,705.3
IVETHOITES v.vvvveeeeeseeesessresssseesesersestes st st sesssss st et assese e srmessbatsbard e R e R ek ebeE b b e Lo bR R e hs 610 nm e nararesd i 23373
Property and equipment - net 35340
Investments in UNCoNSOldAtEd AffIIAIES ..o 149.5
GOOTWIIL....erevvecee et ses et eres e s et s s e ees s s b b o reenn e e m e b1 ES BRI LR b 1,234.3
Other intangible assets - net 131.0
RETEINEN DBNETES c-evv ettt et e rss s e e b e ne e b AR LR R8s bbb b 1,976.0
DIETEITE IMGOMIE FAXES 1 vvviveviteteteeeess et ter st e seas bbb e e e b bbb s 88t ee s oSSR SRR e 1,398.5
D PEE BSSELS. ... vveeeesrerisstatstesassbassatasaserstsbsbr s srassebebesse e e ssse bt ebenoch R R oS eb £ S bR e nE oA 0O E e Eran Rt e 605.8
ORI A SIS . .....vovor oot bbb TSt at R R b R $ 38,5757
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
SNOPE-LBITTI DOMOWINDS .. vveeeseeveseeseesvens s e b e b et e $ 99694
Payabtes to unconsolidated affiliates ..o s 136.5
Accounts payable and accrued Expenses.............. 53579
PIECTUB FXES oot eeese e e eoeercats s e teseser s res e s e eresebabs s aebss s bars e bbb e ee e se s ems e e £ A2 R AR e SRt 274.3
DETEITEA INCOMB TAXES ... .. cvevsseeeeire it ie st itesieeress s bbb bbb ber bbb s b b e bR em b e b SRS E bbbt b e m e A bbb e e R e p s 183.4
Long-term borrowings 11,798.2
Retirement benefits and OthEr HADITIES ..o v e e b e b s bbb 3,700.2

TOUAL HABHIGIES. ..ottt b U LR E SR AR PR E RS baas bbb s b et ee s 31,419.9
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Comeman stock, $1 par value (authorized — 1,200,000,000" shares;

issued — 536,431,204* shares in 2007 and 2006), at stated value ... 27770
Common stock in treasury, 96,795,090* shares in 2007 and 81,365,080~ shares in 2006, at COSL.....covivvevecnnn. (4,015.4)
RELAINGH BAIMINGS ..o v eeereererrerre e e ss b e s s eats e bbb bbb 9,031.7

TOML coovo e eee et eeee e aes s ebeees b enae s s e es s eb et RS hasad S E AR R8T R 7793.3
Retirement Benefits adjUSIMBNL. ..o e b s (1,113.1)
Minimum pension fiahility adjustment ...
Cumulative translation adjustment......... 479.4
Unrealized gain {loss) on derivatives . (7.6
Unrealized gain on IMVBSIMENES. .......c..iviiiecn st s s et 38

Accumulated other COMPrenenSIve INCOME {JOSS).....ovw et b (637.5)

Tl SIOCKNOIIETS BOUY ....covvviterrerrs et srmere e somtctio s bbb bbb bbb e 71558
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ EQUILY ... s $ 38575.7

2006

$ 16875
1,816.7
22.2
3.037.7
14,004.0
2,370.8
448.2
1,483.9
1,957.3
2,7636
124.0
11100
56.4
26424
582.2
603.5

$ 347204

$ 81212
3.0
4,482.8
152.5

64.9
11,584.0
2,792.8

27.229.2

2,203.5
{2.673.4)
7,886.8

74169

(87.6)
150.3
6.8
48

743
7491.2

$ 347204

* Adjusted for two-for-one stock split effective November 26, 2007.
The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DEeErRe & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{In millions of dollars)

2007 2006 2005
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NBEINCOME. ...ttt ittt b bt s s a s st st s st et ees s ens et s bsme s st en e e s ens e st $ 18217 $ 16938 $ 1446.8
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for douDLTUl FECEIVADIES............oov ittt re e 710 65.9 26.1
Provision for depreciation and amOrHZation.......c..ove e e et e 7444 691.4 636.5
Share-based compensation eXpense..........ceeeen. 82.0 80.7 14.5
Gain on the sate of 3 Busingss oo {356.0)
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated affiliates... (17.1) (18.5} 4.1
Pravision {credit} for deferred income taxes............. (4.2) 15.8 (49.3)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade, notes and financing receivables related 1o SalES.........ccoivir e 1311 (703.9) (468.6)
IMVENEOMIBS .vevvetee ettt ettty ettt ettt ereee sttt ns e e s s s e ems e st e n st as s ron bt sr e {(357.2) (78.0) {3241}
Accounts payable and ACCTUEH EXIBNSES ... vr e rererirriasieenesre e esese s mes b ab s b brese e e sen e s bt 418.6 155.3 336.9
Accrued income taxes Payable/TECEIVADIE ..o e e st 10.5 297 149.8
Retirement benefit acCruals/prapaid PENSION COSES ... ...cveverice st (163.2) (400.0) {312.0)
DPEE 1. et bttt st e bR S S AR e TSR ba e et ene s 218 (213.0} {235.9)
Net cash provided by operating activities..... ST P USRI 2,759.4 9732 1,216.6
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Collections Of FECEIVADIBS. ..ot s e bbb 10,335.3 9,274.9 8,076.5
Proceeds from sales of financing reCiVADIES ..o ettt 141.4 108.0 55.2
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities.... 2,458.5 3,006.0 1,065.0
Proceeds from sales of equipment on 0perating [BaSES .....o..vvvrerierer e s s e 355.2 3109 39441
Proceeds from sales of busingsses, net of cash S0I0 ... e s 77.2 4401 20.0
Cost of receivables acquired (11,388.3) (10,451.0) (10,488.8)
Purchases of MArketahle SBCUMHES .........ccev e s e st e bbb e (2,251.6) (2,565.6) (3,276.3})
Purchases of property and BQUIPIMENT .........covr e ees s st s s bbb s {1,022.5) {766.0) (512.6)
Cost of equipment on operating leases acquired (461.7) (417.4) {342.0)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired {189.3) (55.7} (169.7)
DERBE oottt et et a e et et ettt A e et et ee et eaer et et 12,5 {33.1) (29.6)
Net cash used for INVESHNG ACHIVIHES ........c.cc.eveviiiesiee ettt e (1,833.3) (1,148.9) (5,173.2)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase in ShOrt-tEMM DOMOWINGS ....v.vvviies e e ens s ess bbbt b e 93.4 1,208.7 1,814.3
Proceeds from long-term Borrowings..........coveeevevieecns 4,283.9 3,140.2 3,805.4
Payments of long-term DOMOWINGS ...........ccoorvernrecereenennn, (3,136.5) (3,520.6) (1,509.7)
Proceeds from igsuance of commaon stock 285.7 3276 153.6
Repurchases of common SHCK ..o (1,517.8) {1,299.3) {918.9)
DIVIHENAS PAIL. ......vvvrviriimes e e (386.7) (348.4) (289.7)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 102.2 85.6
T OO 1.2) (10.6) {t9)
Net cash provided by {used for) financing activities (281.0) 416.8) 3,053.1
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents.............c..cc.cocovoveieciicienii s 46.0 21.8 {19.4)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ... e 5911 (570.7) {922.9)
Cash and Gash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,687.5 2,258.2 3,181.1
Cash and Cash EQuivalents at ENt of YEar..........c.coooomriereeioeeeeoeoeeeesteeeeeeee et eenarnes $ 22786 $ 16875 $ 2,258.2

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Diere & COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended October 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007

{In milions of dollars)
Accumulated
Unamortized Other
Total Common Treasury Restricted Retained Comprehensive
Equity Stock Stock Stock Earnings Income {Loss)
Balance October 31,2004 ..o, $6,392.8 $2,043.5 $(1,040.4) $(12.7) $ 54451 $ 427
Comprehensive income
NELINCOME ...cvvvvcr et 1,446.8 1,446.8
Other comprehensive income (loss}
Minimum pension liability adjustment.............. (51.7) (51.7)
Cumulative translation adjustment ................. 61.5 61.5
Unrealized gain on derivatives 12.6 12.6
Unrealized loss on investments ... (6.1) (6.9)
Total comprehensive iNCOME ... 1,463.1
Repurchases of common stock .......... (918.9) {918.9)
Treasury shares reissuet...........ce..e.. 215.8 215.8
Dividends dectared .......c.occooeercvinns (293.2) (293.2)
Stock options and other ..., 81 . 3.2 (3.7) (42.6)
Balance October 31,2005 ..................cccceenennnn. 6,851.5 2,081.7 (1,743.5) (16.4) 6,556.1 {26.4)
Comprehensive income .
NEEINEOME 111 s 1,693.8 1,693.8
Qther comprehensive income (loss)
Minimum pension liability adjustment.............. 213 213
Cumulative translation adjustment 797 79.7
Unrealized gain on derivatives............... B B
Unrealized loss on investments ... {9 (.9)
Total comprehensive income......................... 1,794.5
Reclassification to adept FASB
Statement No. 123 {revised 2004) ..o (16.4) 16.4
Repurchases of common Stock ..., {1,299.3) {1,299.3)
Treasury Shares reiSSUEd .......ocoviverirenerierenaennnn. 369.4 3694
Dividends declared ..., (363.4) {363.4)
Stock aptions and other...........cceveeiiicniiine, 138.5 138.2 3
Balance October 31,2006 ..., 7,491.2 2,203.5 (2,673.4) 7,886.8 74.3
Comprehensive income
NELINCOME .ocvvvrerrr s e 1,821.7 1,821.7
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Minimum pension liability adjustment.............. 6h.8 65.8
Cumulative translation adjustment ................ 3291 3291
Unrealized 1083 on derivatives ...........cooeeeeene. (14.4) (14.4)
Unrealized loss on investments ... (1.0} 1.0
Total comprehensive income..................... 2,201.2
Repurchases of common SOCK ..., (1,517.8) (1,517.8)
Treasury shares reissued ........occvennernons 175.8 175.8
Dividends declargt........oouvirieeeernrenee e {408.4) - (408.4)
Stock options and ONer ..o e, 3051 305.3 {.2)
Adjustment to adopt FASB
Statement No. 158, net of tax........oeeeiivinnns (1091.3) (1,091.3)
Transfer for two-for-one stock split
effective November 26, 2007 268.2 (268.2)
Balance October 31, 2007 ............cccooooooevvriennne $ 71558 $2777.0 $(4,0154) 5 $ 98,0317 $ (B375)

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are significant accounting policies in addition to those
included in other notes to the consolidated financial statements,
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements represent the consolidation
of all companies in which Deere & Company has a controlling
interest. Certain variable interest entities {VIEs) related to the
securitization of financing receivables for secured borrowings,
and a supplier operation are consolidated since the company is
the primary beneficiary. Deere & Company records its invest-
ment in each unconsolidated affiliated company (generally 20

to 50 percent ownership) at its related equity in the net assets
of such affiliate. Other investments {less than 20 percent
ownership) are recorded at cost. Consolidated retained earnings
at October 31, 2007 include undistributed earnings of the
uncensolidated affiliates of $75 million. Dividends from
unconsolidated affitiates were $13 million in 2007, $3 mitlion
in 2006 and $2 million in 2005 (see Note 8).

Reclassification

Certain items previously reported in specific financial statement
captions have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 financial
statement presentation. In particular, unamortized restricted
stock compensation previously presented separately has been
eliminated against common stock as a result of the adoption of
FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment,
in 2006.

Structure of Operations

Certain information in the notes and related commentary are
presented in a format which includes data grouped as follows:

Equipment Operations — Includes the company’s agricul-
tural equipment, commerctal and consumer equipment and
construction and forestry operations with Financial Services
reflected on the equity basis except for the health care operations,
which were disposed of in February 2006 and are reported on a
discontinued basis (see Note 2).

Financial Services — Includes the company’s credit and
certain miscellaneous service operations with the health care
operations reported on a discontinued basis.

Consolidated — Represents the consolidation of the
Equipment Operations and Financial Services with the health
care operations reported on a discontinued basis. References to
“Deere & Company” or “the company” refer to the entire
enterprise.

Stock Split in Form of Dividend

On November 14, 2007, a special meeting of stockholders
was held authorizing a two-for-one stock split effected in the
form of a 100 percent stock dividend to holdets of record
on November 26, 2007, distributed on December 3, 2007.
All share and per share data (except par value) have been
adjusted to reflect the effect of the stock split for all periods
presented. The number of shares of common stock issuzble
upon exercise of outstanding stock options, vesting of other
stock awards, and the number of shares reserved for wssuance
under various employee benefit plans were proportionately
increased in accordance with terms of the respective plans
(see Notes 23 and 24).
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Use of Estimates in Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Sales of equipment and service parts are recorded when the
sales price is determinable, and title and all risk of ownership are
transferred to independent parties based on the sales agreements
it effect. In the U.S. and most international locations, this
transfer occurs primarily when goods are shipped. In Canada and
some other international locations, certain goods are shipped to
dealers on a consignment basis under which title and risk of
ownership are not transferred to the dealer. Accordingly, in
these locations, sales are not recorded until a retail customer
has purchased the goods. In all cases, when a sale is recorded by
the company, no significant uncertainty exists surrounding the
purchaser’s obligation to pay. No right of return exists on sales
of equipment. Service parts returns are estimable and accrued at
the time a sale is recognized. The company makes appropriate
provisions based on experience for costs such as doubtful
receivables, sales incentives and product warranty.

Financing revenue is recorded over the lives of related
receivables using the interest method. Deferred costs on the
origination of financing receivables are recognized as a reduction
in finance revenue over the expected lives of the receivables
using the interest method. Income from operating leases is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the scheduled lease terms.
Sales Incentives
At the time a sale is recognized, the company records an
estimate of the future sales incentive costs for allowances
and financing programs that will be due when a dealer sells
the equipment to a retail customer. The estimate is based on
historical data, announced incentive programs, field inventory
levels and settlement volumes.

Product Warranties

At the time a sale is recognized, the company records the
estirnated future warranty costs. These costs are usually
estimated based on historical warranty claims (see Note 22).
Sales Taxes

The company collects and remits taxes assessed by different
governmental authorities that are both imposed on and
concurrent with revenue producing transactions between the
company and its customers. These taxes may include sales, use,
value-added and some excise taxes. The company reports the
collection of these taxes on a net basis (excluded from revenues).
Securitization of Receivables

Certain financing receivables are periodically transferred to SPEs
in securitization transactions (see Note 12). For securitizations
that qualify as collateral for secured borrowings, no gains or losses
are recognized at the time of securitization. These receivables
remain on the balance sheet and are classified as “Restricted
financing receivables - net.” The company recognizes finance
income over the lives of these receivables using the interest
method. For any securitizations that qualify as sales of receivables,
the gains or losses from the sales are recognized in the period of




sale based on the relative fair value of the portion sold and the
portion allocated to interests that continue to be held by the
company. These interests are recorded at fair value estimated by
discounting future cash flows. Changes in these fair values are
recorded after-tax in other comprehensive income in unrealized
gain or loss on investments. Other-than-temporary impairments
are recorded in net income.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs related to the sales of the company’s
equipment are included in cost of sales.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. This expense
was $169 million in 2007, $165 million in 2006 and $157 million
in 2005.

Depreciation and Amortization

Property and equipment, capitalized software and other
intangible assets are depreciated over their estimated useful

lives generally using the straight-line method. Equipment on
operating leases is depreciated over the terms of the leases using
the straight-line method. Property and equipment expenditures
for new and revised products, increased capacity and the
replacement or major renewal of significant items are capitalized.
Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
generally charged to expense as incurred.

Receivables and Allowances

All financing and trade receivables are reported on the balance
sheet at outstanding principat adjusted for any charge-ofis,

the allowance for credit losses and doubtful accounts, and any
deferred fees or costs on originated financing receivables.
Allowances for credit losses and doubtful accounts are main-
tained in amounts considered to be appropriate in relation to
the receivables outstanding based on collection experience,
economic conditions and credit risk quality.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets

The company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets
(including property and equipment, goodwill and other
intangible assets) when events and circumstances warrant such

a review. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are
also tested for impairment annually. Goodwill is allocated and
reviewed for impairment by reporting units, which consist
primarily of the operating segments. The goedwill is allocated
to the reporting unit in which the business that created the
goodwill resides. To test for goodwill impainment, the carrying
value of each reporting unit is compared with its fair value.

If the carrying value of the goodwill or long-lived asset is
considered impaired, a loss is recognized based on the amount by
which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset.
Derivative Financial Instruments

It is the company’s policy that denivative transactions are
executed only to manage exposures arising in the normal course
of business and not for the purpose of creating speculative
positions or trading. The company’s credit operations manage
the relationship of the types and amounts of their funding sources
to their receivable and lease portfolio in an effort to diminish
risk due to interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations, while
responding to favorable financing opportunities. The company

also has foreign currency exposures at some of its foreign and
domestic operations related to buying, selling and fimancing in
currencies other than the local currencies.

All derivatives are recorded at fair value on the balance
sheet. Each derivative is designated as either a cash flow hedge or
a fair value hedge, or remains undesignated. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and effective as cash fow
hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income and
reclassified to the income statement when the effects of the item
being hedged are recognized in the income statement. Changes in
the fair value of derivatives that are designated and effective as
fair value hedges are recognized currently in net income. This is
offset to the extent the hedge was effective by the fair value
changes related to the risk being hedged on the hedged item.
Changes in the fair value of undesignated hedges are recognized
currently in the income statement. All ineffecive changes in
derivative fair values are recognized currently in net income.

All designated hedges are formally documented as to the
reladionship with the hedged item as well as the nisk-management
strategy. Both at inception and on an ongoing basis the hedging
instrument is assessed as to its effectiveness, when applicable.

If and when a derivative is determined not to be highly
effective as a hedge, or the underlying hedged transaction 1s no
longer likely to occur, or the derivative is terminated, the hedge
accounting discussed above is discontinued. Any past or future
changes in the derivative’s fair value that will not be effective

as an offset to the income effects of the item being hedged are
recognized currently in the income statement (see Note 27).
Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currencies for most of the company’s foreign
operations are their respective local currencies. The assets and
liabilities of these operations are translated into U.S. dolars at
the end of the period exchange rates, and the revenues and
expenses are translated at weighted-average rates for the period.
The gains or losses from these translations are included in other
comprehensive income, which is part of stockholders’ equity.
Gains or losses from transactions denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the subsidiary involved
and foreign exchange forward contracts and options are
included in net income or other comprehensive income as
appropriate. The total foreign exchange pretax net gain (loss)
for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $(28) million, $2 million and

$(7) million, respectively.

New Accounting Standards Adopted

In the first quarter of 2007, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.
This Statement requires voluntary changes in accounting
principles to be recorded retrospectively for prior periods
presented rather than a cumulative adjusument in the current
period. This treatment would also be required for new
accounting pronouncements if there are no specific transition
provisions. The accounting for changes in estimates in the
current period and the accounting for errors as restatements

of prior periods have not changed. In the first quarter of 2007,
the company adopted FASB Statement No. 155, Accounting for
Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments. This Statement primarily
resolves certain issues addressed in the implementation of




FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, concerning beneficial
interests in securitized financial assets. In the first quarter of 2007,
the company adopted FASB Statement No. 156, Accounting for
Servicing of Financial Assets. This Statement clarifies the criteria
for recognizing servicing assets and liabilities, requires these items
to be initially measured at fair value and permits subsequent
measurements on cither an amortization ot fair value basis,

The adoption of these Statements did not have a material effect
on the company’s consolidated financial staterments.

At October 31, 2007, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans (see Note 5).
This Statement requires retirement benefir accruals or prepaid
benefit costs on the balance sheet to be adjusted to the difference
berween the benefit obligations and the plan assets at fair value.
The offset to the adjustment is recorded directly in stockholders’
equity net of tax. The amount recorded in stockholders” equity
represents the after-tax unrecognized actuarial gains or losses
and unamortized prior service costs, which have previously
been disclosed in the notes to the annual consolidated financial
staternents. This Statement also requires all benefit obligations
and plan assets to be measured at fiscal year end. The eftective
date for the year-end measurement date is fiscal year 2009.
Prospective application is required. At October 31, 2007, the
effect of adopting this Statement decreased assets by $9 million,
increased liabilities by 81,082 million and decreased stockholders’
equity by $1,091 million after-tax. The company did not
violate any credit agreement financial covenants as a result of
adopting this new standard.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted
In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. This Interpretation
clarifies that the recognition for uncertain tax positions should
be based on a more-likely-than-not threshold that the tax
position will be sustained upon audit. The tax position is
measured as the largest amount of benefit that has a greater
than 50 percent probability of being realized upon settlement.
The standard will be adopted at the beginning of fiscal year
2008 with the cumulative effect reported as an adjustment to
beginning retained earnings as required. The cumulative effect
of adoption will increase assets by approximately $160 million,
increase liabilities by approximately $210 million and decrease
retained earnings by approximately $50 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements. This Statement defines fair value
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
These methods will apply to other accounting standards that
use fair value measurements and may change the application of
certain measurements used in carrent practice. The effective
date is the beginning of fiscal year 2009. The adoption is not
expected to have a material effect on the company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159,
The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
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Liabilities. This Statement permits entities to meastre most
financial instruments at fair value if desired. [t may be applied
on a contract by contract basis and is irrevocable once applied
to those contracts. The standard may be applied at the time

of adoption for existing eligible items, or at initial recognition
of eligible items. After election of this option, changes in fair
value are repotted in earnings. The items measured at fair value
must be shown separately on the balance sheet. The effective
date is the beginning of fiscal year 2009. The cumulative effect
of adoption would be reported as an adjustment to beginning
retained earnings. The company has currently not determined
the potential effect on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No, 141
(revised 2007), Busintess Combinations, and Statement No. 160,
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements.
Statement No. 141 (revised 2007) requires an acquirer to
measure the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed
and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at their fair
values on the acquisition date, with goodwill being the excess
value over the net identifiable assets acquired. This standard also
requires the fair value measurement of certain other assets and
liabilities related to the acquisition such as contingencies and
research and development. Statement No. 160 clarifies thac a
noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary should be reported as
equity in the consolidated financial statements. Consolidated net
income should include the net income for both the parent and
the noncontrolling interest with disclosure of both amounts on
the consolidated statement of income. The calculation of
earnings per share will continue to be based on income
amounts attributable to the parent. The effective date for both
Statements is the beginning of fiscal year 2010. The company
has currently not determined the potential effects on the
consolidated financial statements.

Share-Based Compensation

In the first quarter of 2006, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment,

{see Note 24). In 2005 and prior years, the company used the
intrinsic value method of accounting for its plans in accordance
with APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees. No compensation expense for stock options was
recognized under this method since the options’ exercise prices
were not less than the market prices of the stock at the dates
the options were awarded. The stock-based compensation
expense recognized in earnings was related to restricted stock
awards. For disclosure purposes under FASB Statement No.
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, a binomial
lattice option pricing model was used in 2005 to calculate the
“fair value” of stock options. Based on this model, the weighted-
average fair value of stock options awarded during 2005 was
$£9.99 on an after stock split basis. For the pro-forma disclosure
information, the compensation cost of the stock options that
vest from one to three years was recognized on a straight-line
basis over the three-year vesting period.

Pro forma net income and net income per share, as if the
fair value method in FASB Statement No. 123 had been used




for stock-based compensation, and the assumptions used were
as follows with dollars in millions except per share amounts:

2005
NELiNCOME &S TBPOTBA 1.vvvvvvecereeeeeeee i $ 1447
Add:
Stock-based employee compensation costs,
net of tax, included in NBYINCOME. .....ccc.vvvr e crecenrenr s 8

Less:

Stock-based employee compensation costs,
net of tax, as if fair value method had
been applied

Pro forma net income
Net income per share:

AS 1EPOMEd — DASIC™ . e 2.97
Proforma — DasiC” ..vveeeeeeeeeeeeee e 20
As reported — diluted” ... 294
Pro forma — QiIUBA" .....ovevreer e 2.88
Assumptions™
Risk-free INtErest rate .....ocovviiiirsrec e 3.8%
Dividend yield.......ccecoernnns 1.6%
Stock volatiity ... 26.4%
Expected option life in years 7.5

* Adjusted for two-for-one stock split.
** Weighted-averages

Acquisitions
In May 2007, the company acquired LESCO, Inc. (LESCO) for
a cost of approximately $150 million with preliminary values of
approximately $92 million of goodwill, which is not tax
deductible, and $34 million of other identifiable intangible assets.
The other intangible assets had a weighted-average amortization
period of 13 years. LESCO, based in Cleveland, Ohio, is a
leading supplier of consumable lawn care, landscape, golf course
and pest control products. The preliminary values assigned to
the other major assets and liabilities related to the acquisition
were $18 million of receivables, $167 million of inventory,
$18 million of property and equipment, $31 million of other
assets and $210 million of liabilities. LESCO is the primary
beneficiary of its major supplier, which s a VIE. The VIE
produces blended fertilizer and other lawn care products for
LESCO and has been consolidated with LESCO’s assets and
liabilities shown above. The assets of the VIE that were consoli-
dated, less the intercompany receivables from LESCO that were
eliminated in consolidation, totaled approximately $60 million
(primarily inventory) at time of acquisition and at fiscal year
end 2007. The creditors of the VIE do tiot have recourse to the
general credit of LESCO. LESCO has been included as part of
the company’s commercial and consumer equipment segment.
In August, 2007, the company acquired Ningbo Benye
Tractor & Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (Ningbo Benye)
for a cost of approximately $85 million, including insignificant
goodwill and a preliminary value of approximately $40 million
of identifiable intangible assets with a weighted-average
amortization period of 24 years. This business, which is located
in Ningbo, China, builds tractors mainly in the 20 to 50
horsepower range and is the largest tractor manufacturer in
southern China. The preliminary values assigned to the other
major assets and liabilities related to the acquisition were
$15 million of receivables, $22 million of inventory, $20 million
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of property and equipment and $12 million of liabilities.
Ningbo Benye has been included as part of the company’s
agricultural equipment segment.

The goodwill generated in these acquisitions was the
result of the future cash flows and related fair values of the
entity acquired exceeding the fair values of its identifiable assets
and liabilities. Certain long-lived assets including other intan-
gibles are still being evaluated. The results of these operations
have been included in the company’s financial statements since
the date of the acquisition. The pro forma results of operations
as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the fiscal
year would not differ significantly from the reported results.

Certain adjustments were also made in 2007 to the
estimated fair values of assets recorded for acquisitions made
in 2006 based on final evaluations (see Note 17).

2. DISCONTINUED GPERATIONS

In February 2006, the company sold its wholly-owned subsidiary,
John Deere Health Care, Inc. (health care operations), to
UnitedHealthcare for $512 million and recognized a gain on
the sale of $356 million pretax, or $223 million after-tax ($.47
per share diluted, $.48 per share basic). These operations and the
gain on the sale have been reflected as discontinued operations
in the consolidated financial statements for all peniods presented.
The revenue from discontinued operations on the statement
of consolidated income in 2006 and 2005 was $621 million
and $740 million, and the income before income taxes was
384 million and $49 million, respectively. The fees paid from
the continuing operations to the discontinued health care
operations for administering health care claims in 2006 and 2005
were $7 million and $21 million, respectively. The company will
continue to pay fees to UnitedHealthcare to administer health
claims. The employee termination benefit expense related to the
discontinued operations in 2006 was $8 million, with payments
of $4 million in 2006 and $1 million in 2007, and a remaining
liability at October 31, 2007 of $3 million. This expense was
recorded in “Income from Discontinued Operations.”

3. SPECIAL ITEMS

Restructuring

In January 2006, the company decided to close its forestry
manufacturing facility in Woodstock, Ontario, Canada and
consolidate the manufacturing into the company’s existing
Davenport and Dubuque, lowa facilities. This restructuring 1s
intended to reduce costs and further improve product delivery
times. The facility was included in the construction and
forestry segment.

In 2006, the total expense recognized in costs of sales
related to the closure was $44 million pretax, which included
$21 million for pension and other postretirement benefits:
$10 million for employee termination benefits; $6 million for
impairments and write-downs of property, equipment and
inventory; $5 million for relocation of production and
$2 million for other expenses. At October 31, 2006, there
were no remaining significant liabilities or expenses related to
the restructuring. The pretax cash expenditures associated with
this closure were approximiately $35 million. The annual increase
in earnings and cash flows in 2007 due to this restructuring are
estimated to be $10 million.




Debt repurchase

In February 2006, the company announced a cash tender

offer of up to $500 mullion to repurchase outstanding notes.

An aggregate principal amount of $433 million was repurchased
in 2006 consisting of $144 million of 8.95% Debentures due
2019, $194 mullicn of 7.85% Debentures due 2010 and

$95 million of 8-1/2% Debentures due 2022, The repurchase
of these notes for approximately $500 million resulted in an
expense of $70 million pretax in 2006, which was included

in other operating expenses.

4, CASH FLOW INFORMATION

For purposes of the statement of consolidated cash flows,

the company considers investments with purchased maturities
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Substantially all
of the company’s short-term borrowings, excluding the current
matunities of long-term borrowings, mature or may require
payment within three months or less.

The Equipment Operations sell most of their trade
receivables to Financial Services. These intercompany cash
flows are eliminated in the consolidated cash flows.

All cash flows from the changes in trade accounts and notes
receivable (see Note 10) are classified as operating activities in
the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows as these receivables
anise from sales to the company’s customers. Cash flows from
financing receivables (see Note 11) that are related to sales to
the company’s customers are also included in operating activities.
The remaining financing receivables are related to the financing
of equipment sold by independent dealers and are included in
mvesting activities,

The company had the following non-cash operating and
investing activities that were not included in the Seatement of
Consolidated Cash Flows. The company transferred inventory to
equipment on operating leases of approximately $269 million,
$290 million and $236 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The company had accounts payable related to
purchases of property and equipment of approximately
$100 mllton, $80 million and $55 millien at October 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. At October 31, 2007, the company
recorded a receivable of $47 million for a portion of the sale of
1 business and a liability of $41 mitlion for a portion of the
acquisition of a business.

Cash payments for interest and income taxes consisted of
the following in millions of dollars:

2007 2006 2005

Interest:
Equipment Operations’ ..o $ 423 § 457 % 377
Financial Services ........cecvenvevcnennnn, 1,005 866 576
intercompany efiminations” .......c.......... {294) {296} (281
Consolidated................................. $1134 $1027 § 672
Income taxes:
Equipment Operations ........cc.cc..eveivennnn, $ B0t § 658 $ 516
Financial SErviCes ......coovvvmnimiinnriinans 196 208 214
Intercompany eliminations..................... (157) {165) (183)
Consolidated..................cccooeeevenirennnnn, $ 640 § 701 § 547

* Includes interest compensation to Financial Services for financing trade receivables.

5. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The company has several defined benefit pension plans covering
its U.S. employees and employees in certain foreign countries.
The company has several postretirement health care and life
insurance plans for retired employees in the U.S. and Canada.
The company uses an October 31 measurement date for these plans.

On October 31, 2007, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. This Statement
requires retirement benefic liabilities or benefit assets on the
balance sheet to be adjusted to the difference between the
benefit obligations and the plan assets at fair value. The offset
to the adjustment is recorded directly in stockholders” equity
net of tax. The amount recorded in stockholders’ equiry
represents the after-tax unamortized actuarial gains or losses
and unamortized prior service cost (credit). This Statement
also requires all benefir obligations and plan assets to be
measured at fiscal year end, which the company presendy does.
Prospective application of the new accounting is required.

The incremental effects of the adoption of FASB Statement
No. 158 on October 31, 2007 in mullions of dollars follow:

Prior to After
Adoption Adjustment  Adoption

<8 1358 @48 13

Other intangible assets-net ..

Retirement benefits ............. . 2,681 {708) 1,976
Deferred income taxes..... 700 700 1400
Total 88881S.....coveviri et e 38,585 (9) 38,576
Retirement benafits and other liabilities ........ 2,618 1,082 3,700
Retirement benefits adjustment..........c....... 3y N3
Minimum pension liability adjustment ........... (22) 22
Accumulated other comprehensive income ... 453 {1,091 (638)
Total liabilities and

stockholders’ equity ........ccoeeevvv v 38,585 (9 38576

The worldwide components of net periodic pension cost
and the assumptions related to the cost consisted of the following
in millions of dollars and in percents:

2007 2006 2005

Pensions

SBIVICE COSE..vveiree e $ 168 & 152 § 144
INEEFESt COSL ..ot 488 475 452
Expected return on plan assets......c..cco..... {682) (667)  (684)
Amortization of actuarial [0ss ...........ccec.... 94 110 96
Amariization of prior service cost ... 27 42 43
Special early-retirement benefits ............... 2
Settlements/curtailments.......ccccoeerivviieene 4 18

Netcost. ..., $ 99 § 132 § 51
Weighted-average assumptions

DHSCOUNE FAIBS ...ovveceriviiiee e 57% 57% 5.5%
Rate of compensation increase.................. 3.8% 3.8% 3.9%

Expected long-term rates of return ............. 8.4% 8.5% 8.5%
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The worldwide components of net periodic postretirement
benefits cost and the assumptions related to the cost consisted of
the following in millions of dollars and in percents:

2007 2006 2005

Health care and life insurance

SEIVICE COS ...cvvvevereeeee e ebsnaes e $ 69 % 68 § 83
INterest CoSt...veerveveererririinienns 321 308 299
Expected return on plan assets .. (156) (128} (60}
Amortization of actuarial 1085 .......oceevcvvveee 215 196 297
Amortization of prior service credit ............. {133) (132) (132)
Special early-retirement benefits..... 1

Settlements/curiailments..............ccevvvenee 2

Net €OSt........oocooviccniieconnree. 3 316§ 315§ 487
Weighted-average assumptions

DISCOUNT FALES ....veveececv s e ecee 59% 6.0% 5.5%
Expected fong-lerm rates of return ............. 78% 8.1% 8.5%

The worldwide benefit plan obligations, funded status
and the assumptions related to the obligations at October 31
in millions of dollars follow:

Health Care
and
Pensions Life insurance
2007 2006 2007 2006

Change in benefit obligations
Beginning of yaar balance.................. $ (8,751) $(8,482) $(5,654) ${5,228)
SEIVICE COSE oevevevrenrr e sensens {168) (152) (69) (68)
Interest cost.....ccvun {488} (475} (321}  (308)
Actuarial gain {I0SS}......ervercrerirennnn 463 (202) 475 (326)
AMENdMENES.......o. v (1} 70 6
Benafits paid...ovvvecrreeesrerciemeeneinecens 574 548 285 288
Health care subsidy receipts .............. (14) {(11)
Special early-retirement benefits........ 2 {1
Settlements/curtailments.............ovee.. 7 58 2
Foreign exchange and other ... {(¥71) (44) 22) (8)
End of year balance ... {8,635)  (8,751) {5,250} (5,654)
Change in plan assets (fair vatue)
Beginning of year balance.................. 8927 8284 1893 1177
Actual return on plan assets............. 1,220 1,163 283 201
Employer contribution ... 358 68 288 798
Benefits paid (574)  {548) (285) (288)
RE: (21111511 - TN 7 (58)
Foreign exchange and other.............. 78 18 6 5
End of year balance...........ooveeeee. 10,002 8927 2,185 1,893
Funded Statls .......oveereeeeremnrcrnnennnns 1,467 176 (3,065 (3.761)
Unsecognized actuarial 1085, ............... 1,772 1,917
Unrecognized prior service

COSE (CTBUIY 1.reveee e 145 {141}
Net amount recognized ............... § 1,467 $2,093 §(3,065) ${1,985)
Weighted-average assumptions
Discount rates ..o..ccevvvvevvvmervececrrcanns 6.2% 57% 64% 59%
Rate of compensation increase .........  3.9%  3.8%

The amounts recognized at October 31 in millions of
dollars consist of the following:

Health Care
and
Pensions Life Insurance
2007 2006 2007 2006

Amounts recognized in

balance sheet
Prepaid oSt $ 2642
Accrued liability..... {697) $(1,985)
Intangible asset ..., 9
Accumulated pretax charge to

other comprehensive income......... 139
Net amount recognized.........cooveene $ 2,003 $(1,985)
Noncurrent asset.....vevrecorennes & 1,976
Current Bablliy ........coooorveeiniicrnein (32) $ (23
Noncurrent ligbility...........covvrvcenne (477) (3,042)

$ 1,467 $(3.065)

Amounts recognized in

accumulated other compre-

hensive income - pretax
Net actuarial I0SS85......c..corvuverireree § 688 $ 1102
Prior service cost (Credit) ..., 114 77
L1117 OO S . 1 - $ 1,025

= @ ===

The total accumulated benefit obligations for all pension
plans at October 31, 2007 and 2006 was $8,131 million and
$8,322 million, respectively.

The accumulated benefit obligations and fair value of
plan assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets were $741 million and
$312 million, respectively, at October 31, 2007 and $805
million and $111 million, respectively, at October 31, 2006.
The projected benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets
for pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess
of plan assets were $877 million and $368 million, respectively,
at Qctober 31, 2007 and $927 million and $158 million,
respectively, at October 31, 2006.

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive
income that are expected to be amortized as net expense
(income} during fiscal 2008 in millions of dollars follow:

Health Care

and
Pensions Life Insurance

Net actUarial B0SSBS ..vv e iiiieeerereereiennes $ 40 $ 92
Prior service cost (credit) ... 26 (17}
TOMAL oo $ 66 $ 75

The company expects to contribute approximately $134
million to its pension plans and approximately $294 million to
its health care and life insurance plans in 2008, which include
direct benefit payments on unfunded plans. These expected
contributions also include voluntary contributions to pension
plan assets of approximately $80 million and health care plan
assets of approximately $220 million during 2008.




The benefits expected to be paid from the benefit plans,
which reflect expected future years of service, and the Medicare
subsidy expected to be received are as follows in millions of dollars:

Health Care Heatth Care

and Subsidy

Pansions Life [nstirance Receipts*
2008 ... $ 578 $ 327 $ 15
2009 ..., 587 346 17
2010 erenenienns 591 364 18
0 1 605 381 19
2012, 615 305 20
201302017 3,274 2178 120

* Medicare Part D subsidy.

The annual rates of increase in the per capita cost of
covered health care benefits (the health care cost trend rates)
used to determine benefit obligations at October 31, 2007 were
based on the trends for medical and prescription drug claims for
pre- and post-65 age groups due to the effects of Medicare.

The weighted-average composite trend rates were assumed to be
8.0 percent for 2008, 7.1 percent for 2009, 6.3 percent for 2010,
5.8 percent for 2011, 5.2 percent for 2012 and 5.0 percent for
2013 and all future years. The obligations at October 31, 2006
assumed 8.1 percent for 2007, 7.1 percent for 2008, 6.1 percent
for 2009, 5.4 percent for 2010 and 5.0 percent for 2011 and all
future years. An increase of one percentage point in the assurned
health care cost trend rate would increase the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligations at October 31, 2007 by $528
million and the aggregate of service and interest cost component
of net periodic postretirement benefits cost for the year by

$52 million. A decrease of one percentage point would decrease
the obligations by §443 million and the cost by $42 million.

The discount rate assumptions used to determine the
postretirement obligations at October 31, 2007 and 2006
were based on a hypothetical AA yield curve represented by a
series of annualized individual discount rates. Each bond issue
undetlying the yield curve is required to have a rating of Aa
or better by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. or a rating AA or
better by Standard & Poor’s.

The following is the percentage allocation for plan assets
at October 31:

Pensions Health Care

2007 2006 2007 2006

Equity securities .........cccovvnrvivnierinnnnns 34%  57% 51% 57%
Debt securities ..o 43 20 35 28
Real estate............ 4 4 3 3
L0} OO 19 19 1 12

The primary investment objective is to maximize the
growth of the pension and health care plan assets to meet the
projected obligations to the beneficiaries over a long period of
ame, and to do 5o in a manner that is consistent with the
company’s earnings strength and risk tolerance. Asset allocation
policy s the most important decision in managing the assets and
it is reviewed regularly. The asset allocation policy considers
the company’s financial strength and long-term asset class risk/
return expectations since the obligations are long-term in nature.
On an on-going basts, the target allocations for pension assets
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are approximately 35 percent for equity securities, 43 percent
for debt securities, 4 percent for real estate and 18 percent for
other, and for health care assets are approximately 48 percent
for equity securities, 38 percent for debt securities, 3 percent for
real estate and 11 percent for other. The assets are well diversi-
fied and are managed by professional investment firms as well

as by investment professionals who are company employees.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
reflects management’s expectations of long-term average rates
of return on funds invested to provide for benefits included in
the projected benefit obligations. The expected return 1s based
on the outlook for inflation, fixed income returns and equity
returns, while also considering historical returns, asset allocation
and investment strategy. Although not a guarantee of future
results, the average annual return of the company’s U.S. pension
fund was approximately 9 percent during the past ten years and
approximately 12 percent during the past 20 years,

The company has created certain Voluntary Employees
Beneficiary Association trusts (VEBAs) for the funding of
postretirement health care benefits. The future expected asset
returns for these VEBAs are lower than the expected return on
the other pension and health care plan assets due to investment
in a higher proportion of short-term liquid securities. These assets
are in addition to the other postretirement health care plan assets
that have been funded under Section 401(h) of the U S, Internal
Revenue Code and maintained in a separate account in the
company’s pension plan trust.

See Note 25 for defined contribution plans related to
employee investment and savings.

6. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes from continuing operations by

taxing jurisdiction and by significant component consisted of the
tollowing in millions of dollars:

2007 2006 2005

Current:

Us.:
FEABTAL....ooecvverev v $484 $448 $422
S v 40 28 32
FOTBIQN ..o i 354 260 284
Total CUITENT ... 878 736 738

Deferred:

U.s.:
Federal ... () 3 {(24)
1 - RO 8 6 (17
FOTBIGN ..oovivvei e (1 (3) 2
Total deferred ......ooovviivie e 5 6 (39)
Provision for income taxes ... $883  $742  $699

Based upon location of the company’s operations, the
consolidated income from continuing operations before income
taxes in the U.S, in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1,601 million,
$1,431 million and $1,226 million, respectively, and in foreign
countties was $1,075 million, $743 million and $881 million,
respectively. Certain foreign operations are branches of
Deere & Company and are, therefore, subject to U.S., as well as
foreign income tax regulations, The pretax income by location




and the preceding analysis of the income tax provision by taxing
jurisdiction are, therefore, not directly related.

A companison of the statutory and effective income tax
provision from continuing operations and reasons for related
differences in millions of dollars follow:

2007 2006 2005

U.S. federal income tax provision

at a statutory rate of 35 percent ... $ 936 § 761 § 737
tncrease {decrease) resulting from:
State and local income taxes, net of

federal income tax benefit ..o 32 22 10
Taxes on foreign aCtivities ........ooceieeccncniiiniens (24) 8 (8)
Nondeductible costs and other-net ... {61y (49 (42}
Provision for income taxes..............cc.oeevennn, $ 883 % 742 $ 699

In October 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004
(the Act) was signed into law. The Act introduced a special one-
time dividends received deduction on the repatriation of certain
foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer (repatriation provision),
provided certain criteria are met. The deduction is 85 percent
of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated. During 2005, the
company recognized a tax benefit of approximately $15 million,
related to the repatriation of foreign earnings under the Act.

At October 31, 2007, accumulated earnings in certain
subsidiaries outside the U.S. totaled $814 million for which no
provision for U.S. income taxes or foreign withholding taxes
has been made, because it is expected that such earnings will be
reinvested overseas indefinitely. Determination of the amount
of unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unremitted
earnings is not practical.

Deferred income taxes arise because there are certain items
that are treated differently for financial accounting than for income
tax reporting purposes. An analysis of the deferred income tax
assets and liabiliies at October 31 in millions of dollars follows:

2007 2006
Deferred Deferred Deferred  Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Assets  Liabilities  Assets  Liabilities

Other postretirement

benefit iabilities .............cccuurrnn. $1,282 $ 825
Pension assets - net $ 646 $ 845
Accrual for sales atlowances......... 350 327
Tax over book depreciation............ 237 214
Accrual for employee benefits....... 212 195
Lease transactions ....................... 127 144
Tax loss and tax credit

carryforwards ................ 118 132
Altowance for credit losses............ 88 77
Minimum pension liability

AdJUSIMENT ..o 51
Intercompany profit in inventory ... 49 51
Stock option compensation............ 45 26
Deferred compensation................. 30 27
Undistributed foreign earnings....... 20 19
Other EMS ....cvv e 259 13 181 103
Less valuation allowances............. (56) (50)

Deferred income tax

assets and liabilities ............ $2377 $1,161 $1842 $1325

Deere & Company files a consolidated federal income tax
return in the U.S., which includes the wholly-owned Financial
Services substdiaries. These subsidiaries account for income
taxes generally as if they filed separate income tax returns.

At Qctober 31, 2007, certain tax loss and tax credit
carryforwards for $118 million were available with $85 million
expiring from 2008 through 2027 and $33 million with an
unlimited expiration date.

7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The major components of other income and other operating
expenses from continuing operations consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2007 2006 2005

Other income

Revenues from SErvICES”.......cveerrrievsseeer $ 314 § 251 § 157

INVEStMENT IMCOME .....cvevvseeeeee e s 83 89 25

Securitization and servicing fee income ...... 23 37 48

[0 152 STV SRR 118 110 120
TOW oo ereeesreesnssersmrsseceeeeeee. & 538 % 487 3 350

Other operating expenses
Depreciation of equipment on

OpErating 18ases ... & 297§ 269§ 237
CoSt OF SBIVICES oo 248 203 103
Debt repurehase. ..o 70
DHNEI™ <o 20 3 41

TOAD e $ 565 $ 545 § 3R

* (Certain reclassifications from other to service revenues and costs were made in
2006 and 2005 consistent with the 2007 presentation.

8. UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Unconsolidated affiliated companies are companies in which
Deere & Company generally owns 20 percent to 50 percent
of the outstanding voting shares. Deere & Company does not
control these companies and accounts for its investments in
them on the equity basis. The investments in these companies
primarily consist of Deere-Hitachi Construction Machinery
Corporation (50 percent ownership), Bell Equipment Limited
(32 percent ownership) and A&I Products (36 percent
ownership). The unconsolidated affiliated companies primarily
manufacture or market equipment. Deere & Company’s share of
the income of these companies is reported in the consolidated
income statement under “Equity in Income of Unconsolidated
Affiliates.” The investment in these companies is reported in
the consolidated balance sheet under “Investments in
Unconsolidated Affiliates.”

Combined financial information of the unconsolidated
affiliated companies in millions of dollars is as follows:

Operations 2007 2006 2005
SIS vt e e $2026 $2062 $1983
NEEINCOME. ....viviviereeeee e 79 54 14
Deere & Company's equity in

0B INCOME...vviie e 29 21 6
{continued)




Financial Position 2007 2006

Total 8SSBES...ov.veevereveirvrissveersnnicsneene. 8 1,081 § 968
Total external borrowings. 140 86
Total NBt ASSEES .v.vvvvvevcreri e e 385 293
Deere & Company's share of

the net assets ... 150 124

9. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

All marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale,
with unrealized gains and losses shown as a component of
stockholders’ equity. Realized gains or losses from the sales of
marketable securities are based on the specific identification
method.

The amortized cost and fair value of marketable
securities for continuing operations at October 31 in millions
of dollars follow:

Amortized  Gross Gross
Cost  Unrealized Unrealized  Fair
or Cost Gains Losses  Value

2007

U.S. government debt securities.... $ 228  § 2 $ 230
Municipal debt securities .............. 135 135
Corporate debt securities.............. 555 1 556
Mortgage-backed debt securities.. 303 1 304
Asset backed securities ............... 254 254
Other debt securities ... 144 144
Marketable securities............... $1619 § 4 $1,623
2006

U.S. government debi securities.... $ 363 Sy $ 362
Municipal debt securities .............. 134 134
Corporate debt securities.............. 549  $ 1 550
Mortgage-backed debt securities,, 284 284
Asset backed securities.............. 239 239
Other debt securities .................. 248 248
Marketable securities............. $ 1,817 § 1 () $1.817

The contractual maturities of debt secunties at October
31, 2007 in millions of dollars follow:

Amortized  Fair
Cost Value
Due in one year or 1855 .........cooveuvveerererenenns $ 243 § 243

Due after one through five years.......................
Due after five through 10 years ........cccovevveeees
OUue after TO YBAS ...t s 357

Debt securities.............c.oovveccviniiiciine. $ 1,619 $1623

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because some securities may be called or prepaid. Proceeds from
the sales of available-for-sale securities from continuing operations
were $1,379 million in 2007, $2,157 million in 2006 and §917
in 2005. Realized gains were $4 million and §.4 million and
realized losses were $10 million and $4 million in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Realized gains and losses were not significant in
2005. Unrealized gains and losses, the increase (decrease) in net
unrealized gains or losses and unrealized losses that have been
continuous for over twelve months were not significant in any
years presented. Unrealized losses at October 31, 2006 were

primarily the result of an increase in interest rates and were not
recognized in income due to the ability and intent to hold to
maturity. Losses related to impairment write-downs were

$7 mullion in 2007 and were not significant for any other years
presented.

10. TRADE AGCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts and notes receivable at October 31 consisted of
the following in millions of dollars:

2007 2006
Trade accounts ang notes:
AGRCURUIAD ... e 31,867 5 1,647
Commercial and CONSUMET ...............coeeeerrmrireereennnnns 658 fall
Construction and fOreSIIY...i s vevsreniins 530 680
Trade accounts and notes receivable-net............ $3.055 $3,038

At October 31, 2007 and 2006, dealer notes included in
the previous table were §413 million and $398 million, and the
allowance for doubtful trade receivables was $64 million and
$62 million, respectively.

The Equipment Operations sell a significant portion of
newly originated trade receivables to the credit operations and
provide compensation to the credit operations at market rates
of interest for these receivables.

Trade accounts and notes receivable primarily arise from
sales of goods to independent dealers. Under the terms of the
sales to dealers, interest is charged to dealers on outstanding
balances, from the earier of the date when goods are soid to
recail customers by the dealer or the expiration of certain
interest-free periods granted at the time of the sale to the dealer,
until payment is received by the company. Dealers cannot
cancel purchases after the equipment is shipped and are
responsible for payment even if the equipment is not sold to
retail customers. The interest-free periods are determined based
on the type of equipment sold and the time of year of the sale.
These periods range from one to twelve months for most
equipment. Interest-free periods may not be extended.

Interest charged may not be forgiven and interest rates,

which exceed the prime rate, are set based on market factors.
The company evaluates and assesses dealers on an ongoing basis
as to their credit worthiness and generally retains a security
interest in the goods associated with these trade receivables.
The company is obligated to repurchase goods sold to a dealer
upon cancellation or termination of the dealet’s contract for
such causes as change in ownership and closeout of the business.
The company may also in certain circumstances repurchase
goods sold to a dealer in order to satisfy a request for goods
from another dealer.

Trade accounts and notes receivable have significant
concentrations of credit risk in the agricultural, commercial and
consumer, and construction and forestry sectors as shown in
the previous table. On a geographic basis, there is not a
disproportionate concentration of credit risk in any area.




11, FINANCING RECEIVABLES

2007 2006

Financing receivables at October 31 consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2007 2006
Unsestricted/Restricted Unrestricted/Restricted
Retail notes:
Equipment:
Agricultural ..., $ 9,394 $2027 § 7512 $2279
Commercial and
CONSUMET ........coovevenee 1,235 1,231
Construction and
fOreStY. oo 2,417 571 2,447 462
Recreational products......... 24 35
Total...oooivieiciririniereen. 13,070 2598 11,225 2,74
Wholesale notes..........cocceene. 1,303 1,463
Revolving charge accounts...... 1,649 1,582
Financing leases
{direct and sales-type)........ 1,088 927
Operating 10anS ...oo...coocvevennes 287 379
Totat financing receivables.. 17,397 2,598 15576 2,7
Less:
Unearned finance income:
Equipment notes ............ 1,473 296 1,306 359
Recreational product
11171 3 8
Financing leases............ 129 114
Total.oooooeeeee 1,607 296 1,428 359
Allowance for doubtful
receivables ..ovveeeeennens 159 13 144 1
Financing
receivables —net............ $15631 $2289 $14,004 §$ 2371

Financing receivables have significant concentrations
of credit risk in the agricultural, commercial and consumer,
and construction and forestry sectors as shown in the previous
table. On a geographic basis, there is not a disproportionate
concentration of credit risk in any area. The company retains
as collateral a security interest in the equipment associated with
retail notes, wholesale notes and financing leases.

Financing receivables at October 31 related to the
company’s sales of equipment (see Note 4) that were included
in the table above were unrestricted and consisted of the
following in millions of dollars:

2007 2006
Retail notes*:
Equipment:
AGECURUIAL . v e st $1394 $1217
Commercial and CONSUMBN .......c.oovcrererreeercrererens i 87
Construction and forestry ......cocoecrvovvnnrceinrenns 719 719
TOMAL. .ot st 2,224 2023
oo 1,303 1,463
Salas-TYPR IBASES ... erereris e e saseeee s 652 499
T s 34179 53,985
(continued)

Less:
Unearned finance income:
EQUIDMERE NOIES ... e e $ 255 § 260
Sales-type [8ASES.........ceeeerir e 67 52
B | IS OO OO RO 322 312
Financing receivables related to the
company’s sales of equipment.......................... $3,857 $3673

* These retail notes generally arise from sates of equipment by company-owned
dealers or through direct satas.

Financing receivable instaltments, including unearned
finance income, at October 31 are scheduled as follows 1n
millions of dollars:

2007 2006
Unrestricied/Restricted Unrestricted/Restricted

Due in months:

012 e 3 8,068 § B47 $ 7364 $ 753
13-24.. 3,999 766 3175 707
25-36..cciiiiiiiiinenn,. 2,679 592 2391 621
3748 1,590 302 1,522 461
49-60....... B28 85 876 180
Thereafter.........ocoeviercree. 233 B 248 19

Total ... e $ 17397 $2598 $15576 § 2741

The maximum terms for retail notes are generally seven
years for agricultural equipment, seven years for commercial
and consumer equipment and five years for construction and
forestry equipment. The maximum term for financing leases is
generally five years, while the average term for wholesale notes
is less than twelve months.

At October 31, 2007 and 2006, the unpaid balances
of receivables previously sold by the credit operations were
£453 million and $1,197 million, respectively. The receivables
sold are collateralized by security interests in the related
equipment sold to customers. At October 31, 2007 and 2006,
worldwide financing receivables administered, which include
financing receivables previously sold but still administered,
totaled 818,373 million and $17,572 million, respectively.

Generally when financing receivables become approxi-
mately 120 days delinquent, accrual of finance income is
suspended and the estimated uncollectible amount is written
off to the allowance for credit losses. Accrual of finance income
is resumed when the receivable becomes contractually current
and collection doubts are removed. Investments in financing
receivables on non-accrual status at October 31, 2007 and 2606
were $59 million and $44 million, respectively.

Total financing receivable amounts 60 days or more
past due were $46 million at October 31, 2007, compared
with $45 million at October 31, 2006. These past-due
amounts represented .25 percent of the receivables financed
at October 31, 2007 and .27 percent at October 31, 2006.
The allowance for doubtful financing receivables represented
.95 percent and .94 percent of financing receivables outstanding
at October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In addition, at
October 31, 2007 and 2006, the company’s credit operations
had $192 million and $194 million, respectively, of deposits




withheld from dealers and merchants available for potential
credit losses. An analysis of the allowance for doubtful financing
receivables follows in millions of doHars:

The components of consolidated secured borrowings and
other liabilities related to securitizations at October 31 were as
follows in millions of dollars:

2007 2006 2005 2006
Balance, beginning of the year ...... .5 155 § 140 $ 145 Short-term DOrOWINGS ... eveeeeereeecereseenee e $2403
Provision charged to operations... 62 51 19 Accrued interest on BOrOWINGS ......occe e, 5 5
Amounts Wrten off....ocvrevrssrsns (59 (39) (28) Total Yiabilities related to restricted securitized assets..... $2,349  $2,408
Other changes (primarily translation ————
adjustments).........occon, 14 3 4

Balance, end of the year $ 172 & 155 § 140

12. SECURITIZATION OF FINANCING RECEIVABLES

The company, as a part of its overall funding strategy, periodi-
cally transfers certain financing receivables (retail notes) into
special purpose entities (SPEs) as part of its asset-backed
secunities programns {securitizations) involving its retail notes.
For securitizations entered into prior to 2005, the structure of
these transactions is such that the transfer of the retail notes met
the criteria of sales in accordance with FASB Statement No., 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishment of Liabilities. Beginning in 2005, the transfer
of retail notes into new securitization transactions did not meet
the sales criteria of FASB Statement No. 140 and are, therefore,
accounted for as secured borrowings. SPEs utilized in securiti-
zations of retail notes differ from other entities included in

the company’s consolidated statements because the assets they
hold are legally isolated. For bankruptcy analysis purposes,

the company has sold the receivables to the SPEs in a true sale
and the SPEs are separate legal entities. Use of the assets held by
the SPEs is restricted by terms of the documents governing the
securitization transaction. Further information related to the
secured borrowings and sales of retail notes is provided below.

Secured Borrowings
In securitizations of retail notes related to secured borrowings,
the retail notes are transferred to certain SPEs which in turn
issue debt to investors. The resulting secured borrowings are
included in short-term borrowings on the balance sheet as
shown in the following table. The securitized retail notes are
recorded as “Restricted financing receivables - net” on the
balance sheet. The total restricted assets on the balance sheet
related to these securitizations include the restricted financing
receivables less an allowance for credit losses, and other assets
representing restricted cash as shown in the following table.
The SPEs supporting the secured borrowings to which the
retail notes are transterred are consolidated unless the company
is not the primary beneficiary or the SPE is a qualified special
purpose entity as defined in FASB Statement No. 140.

The components of consolidated restricted assets related to
secured borrowings in securitization transactions at October 31
were as follows in millions of dollars:

2007 2006
Restricted financing receivables (retail notes)................ $2,301  $2,382
Allowance for credit 108808 ... ciieveiin e (12) (i
OthEr @SSELS........ec oo et e 45 82
Total restricted securitized 8SSELS......ovvvvveverercvnnir e $2334 $2453

The secured borrowings related to these restricted
securitized retail notes are obligations that are payable as the
retail notes are liquidated. Repayment of the secured borrowings
depends primarily on cash flows generated by the restricted assets.
Due to the company's short-term credit rating, cash collections
from these restricted assets are not required to be placed into a
restricted collection account until immediately prior to the time
payment is required to the secured creditors. Under FASB
Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities, an SPE was consolidated that
included assets {restricred retail notes) of $1,494 million and
$1,147 million at October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
These restricted retail notes are included in the restricted
financing receivables related to securiuzations shown in the
table above. At October 31, 2007, the maximum remaining
term of all restricted receivables was approximately six years.

Sales of Receivables

Prior to 2005, the company periodically transferred certain
retail notes into SPEs as part of its securitization program in
transactions that were structured such that the transfer of the
retail notes met the critena of sales in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 140. The SPEs issue asset-backed securities to
investors and use the proceeds of the debr issuance to pay for
the retail notes. However, the company retains certain interests
in the SPEs’ assets including interest-only strips, a reserve
account and subordinated certificates. These interests that
continue to be held by the company (transferor) are carried at
estimated fair value in “Other receivables” or “Other assets”
on the balance sheet. Gains or losses on sales of the receivables
depended in part on the previous carrying amount of the
financial assets involved in the transfer, allocated between the
assets sold and the interests that continue to be held based on
their relative fair values at the date of transfer. The company
generally estimates fair values based on the present value of
future expected cash flows using management’s key assumptions
as discussed below. The company retains the rights to certain
future cash flows and in the ULS. transactions receives annual
servicing fees approximating one percent of the outstanding
balance. No significant balances for servicing assets or liabilities
exist because the benefits received for servicing are just adequate
to compensate the servicer for the costs of providing the
servicing. The company’s maximum exposure under recourse
provisions related to securitized sold retail notes at October 31,
2007 and 2006 was $20 million and $109 million, respectively.
The recourse provisions contractually specified by the docu-
ments governing the securitization transaction are contingent
liabilities that are remote at this time. Except for this exposure,
the investors and securitization trusts have no recourse to the




company for failure of debtors to pay when due. The interests
that continue to be held by the company, are subordinate to
investors’ interests and their values are subject to certain key
assumptions as shown below. The total assets of the unconsoli-
dated SPEs related to these securitizations at October 31, 2007
and 2006 were $120 million and $994 million, respectively.
At Qctober 31, 2007, the maximum remaining term of these
receivables sold was approximately three years.

Cash flows received from securitization trusts for retail
notes sold in prior years in millions of dollars were as follows:

2007 2006 2005

6 § 13 § 22
18 § 27 § 46

Servicing fees received ..ooeecveerecvcenneen. $
Other cash flows received.......c.c.cooeeeeenee $

The company has utilized a revolving multi-bank conduit
facility to securitize floating rate retail notes that were structured
as either sales or secured borrowings. In September 2007, the
company amended the facility and simultaneously repurchased
$264 million of retail notes previously sold into the facility.

Components of interests that continue to be held by the
company in securitized retail notes sold at October 31 in
millions of dollars follow:

2007 2006
Interest only SRS ...cov e $§ 4
Reserve accounis held for benefit of
SECUMTIZAtION BALHIES ....cvvvvvv e B 13 48
Subordinated Certifiates .o 4 9
TOMAD oottt e bbb $ 17 § 98

The total interests that continue to be held by the
company, weighted-average life, weighted-average current key
economic assumptions and the sensitivity analysis showing the
hypothetical effects on these interests from immediate 10 percent
and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions with dollars
in millions were as follows: '

2007 2006
Securitized retail notes sold
Carrying amount/fair value of interests that continue
to be held by the company ... 3 17§ 98
Weighted-average life (in months} ... 9 11
Prepayment speed assumption {annual rate).......ccceeeee..  12% 16%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change...........$  * § .2
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change ........... § %3
Expected credit losses (annual rate) ..o .80% 46%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change......:....$ * § 4
Impact on fair value of 20% adverse change ............. 8 15 7
Residual cash flows discount rate (annual}........ccovennn. 13% 11%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change.............. § 1 % 18
impact on fair value of 20% adverse change ............. $ 1§ 38

* Impacts are less than $.1 million,

These sensitivities are hypothetical changes in fair value
and cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the
changes in assumption to the changes in fair value may not be
linear. Also, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption
is calculated without changing any other assumption, whereas
changes in one factor may result in changes in another.

Accordingly, no assurance can be given that actual results would
be consistent with the results of these esiimates.

Principal balances of owned, securitized retail notes
sold and total managed retail notes; past due amounts; and
credit losses (net of recoveries) as of and for the years ended
Qctober 31, in millions of dollars follow:

Principal Principal 60 Days or Net Credit
Qutstanding More Past Due Losses
2007
OWRE ovvir v $ 13,652 $ 24 $ 24
Securitized retail notes sold..... 107 1 1
Managed........c.covvevnierres 3 13,758 g 25 §25
2006
OWNED et $ 11,888 $ 19 $ 10
Securitized retail notes sold..... 898 6 2
Managed. ... ovevvereecnnnerenes $ 12786 $ 25 $ 12
13. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables for continuing operations at October 31
consisted of the following in millions of dollars:

2007 2006
TaXes FECEIVAINE ... .covecveisseis s ensenee e ensaenss e $ 361 § 224
Receivables refating to securitized retail notes sold......... 13 89
ODB ... 222 135
Otherreceivables.............cccoovveeeecvcneeeenee 3 596§ 448

The credit operations’ receivables related to securitizations
are equal to the present value of payments to be received for
certain interests that continue to be held by the company and
deposits made with other entities for recourse provisions under
the retail note sales agreements (see Note 12).

14. EQUIPMENT ON OPERATING LEASES

Operating leases arise primarily from the leasing of John Deere
equipment to retail customers. Initial lease terms generally range
from 36 to 60 months. Net equiptment on operating leases
totaled $1,705 million and $1,494 million at October 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. The equipment is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the leases. The accumulated
depreciation on this equipment was $520 million and $460
million at October 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively.

The corresponding depreciation expense was $297 million in
2007, $269 million in 2006 and $237 million in 2005.

Future payments to be received on operating leases totaled
$779 million at Qctober 31, 2007 and are scheduled as follows
in millions of dollars: 2008 — $339, 2009 ~ $227, 2010 - $133,
2011 - $63 and 2012 - $17.

15. INVENTORIES

Most inventories owned by Deere & Company and its

United States equipment subsidiaries are valued at cost, on the
“last-in, first-out” (LIFO} basis. Remaining inventories are
generally valued at the lower of cost, on the “first-in, first-out”
(FIFO) basis, or market. The value of gross inventories on the
LIFO basis represented 58 percent and 60 percent of worldwide




gross inventories at FIFO value on October 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. If all inventories had been valued on a FIFQO basis,
estimated inventories by major classification ar October 31 in
millions of dollars would have been as follows:

2007 2006
Raw materials and supplies.......cocoovvvveeoniieneicen, $ B82 & 7i2
Work-in-process.......c.ovrevriereeniennns W 425 372
Finished machines and parts.......cocovreenviennicnnne 2,263 2,013
Total FIFO VAIUR.........eeoecev e e 3,570 3,097
Less adjustment 10 LIFO valug..........coocovrervcccvcrnnnnns 1,233 1,140
INVENTORIES. ... s $2,337 §1957

16. PROPERTY AND DEPREGIATION

A summary of property and equipment for continuing operations
at October 31 in millions of dollars follows:

Useful Lives”

{Years) 2007 2006
Equipment Operations
LANG ... ir e $ 83 § 83
Buildings and building equipment ........ 25 1,795 1,592
Machinery and equipment..........c........ 10 3,355 3,088
Dies, patterns, tools, 81G ..o 7 920 a3
AlLGINET (..o 5 594 591
Construction in progress........cocovvereen. 245 23
Total 8t COSt ... 6,992 6,516
Less accumulated depreciation ........... 4271 4102
TOAl vt 2,721 2,414
Financial Services
Land ... 4 4
Buildings and building equipment......... 29 40 39
Machinery and equipment................... 10 91 65
ALOIhEN s 6 34 36
Construction in progress........oeeeen. 601 245
Total 88 COSt .. 860 389
Less accumulated depreciation ........... 47 39
TOWl o 813 350
Property and equipment-net.......... $3534 $2764

* Weighted-averages

Leased property under capital leases amounting to
$23 miltion and $15 million at October 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, is included in property and equipment.

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Total property and equipment additions in 2007,
2006 and 2005 for continuing operations were $1,064 million,
$781 million and $523 million and depreciation was $402
million, $379 million and $354 million, respectively.
Capitalized interest was $31 million, $6 million and $2 million
in the same periods, respectively. Financial Services property
and equipment additions included above were $476 million,
$292 mullion and $46 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005 and
depreciation was $13 million, $8 million and §5 million,
respectively. The increase in Financial Services additions in
2007 and 2006 was primarily due to wind turbines related to
investments in wind energy generation.

Capitalized softwate is stated at cost less accumulated
amortization, and the estimated useful life is three years.
The amounts of total capitalized software costs, including
purchased and internally developed software, classified as
“Other Assets” for continuing operations at October 31, 2007
and 2006 were $345 million and $322 million, less accumulated
amortization of $270 million and $258 million, respectively.
Amortization of these software costs was $33 million in 2007,
$32 million in 2006 and $35 million in 2005.

The cost of comphance with foreseeable environmental
requirements has been accrued and did not have a material effect
on the company's financial position or results of operations.

17. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS-NET

The amounts of goodwill by operating segment were as follows
in millions of dollars:

2007 2006
Agricultural qUIDMENT ... $ 174 $ 180
Commercial and consumer quipment.........ccivnnn, 448 357
Construction and forestry 612 573
GOOAWIIl..........ccoooeeecrii s $1234 $ 1110

The goodwill in the agricultural equipment segment
decreased by approximately $23 million in 2007 due to an
adjustment of the goodwill related to a 2006 acquisition and the
recognition of identifiable intangible assets from the acquisition.
The goodwill in the commercial and consumer equipment
segment increased by $92 million in 2007 due to an acquisition
(see Note 1), The remaining changes in goodwill were primarily
due to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

The components of other intangible assets are as follows
in millions of dollars:

Useful Lives™
(Years) 2007 2006

Amortized intangible assets:

Customer lists and relationships............... 14 $ 7 & 952
Gross patents, licenses and other............. 18 74 1

Total 8t COSt.....cvovvecrrcvrnrenneneninienee 152 63
Less accumulated amortization ................ 29 16

TOML e 123 47
Unamortized intangible assets:

TrAgEMATK .vv. e 8

Intangible asset related to minimum

pension lahility™™ ......cccoverninnnns 9

Other intangible assets-net ............... $ 131 & 56

* Weightad-averages
** Before adoption of FASB Statement No, 158,

Other intangible assets, excluding the intangible pension
asset, are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
The amortization of other intangible assets in 2007, 2006 and
2005 were $12 million, $11 mullion and $2 million, respectively.
The estimated amortization expense for the next five years are
as follows in millions of dollars: 2008 - $13, 2009 - $11,
2010 - $11, 2011 - $10, and 2012 - $10.




18, SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2007 2006
Equipment Operations
COMMEICTIAl PAPBT ....oeoeve e oo sssnres b $§ 34 § 228
Notes payable t0 Danks...........cocemmcricrin e 90 47
Long-teren borrowings due within one year ... 6 7
TOMAL ... et s e 130 282
Financial Services
Commerciat paper ........ . 2,803 2,352
Notes payable to banks 77 13
Notes payable related 1o securitizations (see below)...... 2,344 2,403
Long-term borrowings dug within one y&ar ............eevee. 4,615 3,071
B o OO OO 9,839 7,839
Short-term borrowings. ..., $8,969 § 8,121

The notes payable related to securitizations for Financial
Services are secured by restricted financing receivables (retail
notes) on the balance sheet (see Note 12). Although these notes
payable are classified as short-term since payment is required if
the retail notes are liquidated early, the payment schedule for
these borrowings of $2,344 million at October 31, 2007 based
on the expected liquidation of the retail notes in millions of
dollars is as follows: 2008 - $1,015, 2009 - $713, 2010 - $438,
2011 - $156, 2012 - $22.

The weighted-average interest rates on total short-term
borrowings, excluding current maturities of long-term borrowings,
at October 31, 2007 and 2006 were 5.1 percent in both years.
All of the Financial Services’ short-term borrowings represent
obligations of the credit subsidiaries.

Lines of credit available from U.S. and foreign banks were
$3,894 million at October 31, 2007. Some of these credit lines
are available to both Deere & Company and John Deere Capital
Corporation (Capital Corporation). At October 31, 2007,
$904 million of these worldwide lines of credit were unused.
For the purpose of computing the unused credit lines,
commercial paper and short-term bank borrowings, excluding
secured borrowings and the current portion of long-term
borrowings, were considered to constitute utilization.

Included in the above lines of credit was a long-term credit
facility agreement for $3.75 billion, expiring in February 2012.
The agreement is mutually extendable and the annual facility
fee is not significant. The credit agreement requires the
Capital Corporation to maintain its consolidated ratio of earnings
to fixed charges at not less than 1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter
and the ratio of senior debt, excluding securitization indebted-
ness, to capital base (total subordinated debt and stockholder’s
equity excluding accumulated other comprehensive income
{loss)) at not more than 9.5 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter.
The credit agreement also requires the Equipment Operations
to maintain a ratio of total debt to total capital (total debt and
stockholders’ equity excluding accumulated other comprehen-
sive income (loss)) of 65 percent or less at the end of each fiscal
quarter according to accounting principles generally accepted in
the USS. in effect at October 31, 2006. Under this provision, the
company’s excess equity capacity and retained earnings balance
free of restriction at October 31, 2007 was $6,661 million.

Alternatively under this provision, the Equipment Operations
had the capacity to incur additional debt of $12,370 million
at October 31, 2007. All of these requirements of the credit
agreement have been met during the periods included in the
fiancial statements.

Deere & Company has an agreement with the Capital
Corporation pursuant to which it has agreed to continue to own
at least 51 percent of the voting shares of capital stock of the
Capital Corporation and to maintain the Capital Corporation’s
consolidated tangible net worth at not less than $50 million.
This agreement also obligates Deere & Company to make income
maintenance payments to the Capital Corporation such that its
consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges is not less than
1.05 to 1 for each fiscal quarter. Deere & Company’s obligations
to make payments to the Capital Corporation under the
agreement are independent of whether the Capital Corporation
is in default on its indebtedness, obligations or other liabilities.
Further, Deere & Company’s obligations under the agreement
are not measured by the amount of the Capital Corporation’s
indebtedness, obligations or other labilities. Deete & Company’s
obligations to make payments under this agreement are
expressly stated not to be a guaranty of any specific indebtedness,
obligation or liability of the Capital Corporation and are
enforceable only by or in the name of the Capital Corporation.
No payments were required under this agreement during the
periods included in the financial statements.

19. ACGOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at October 31 for
continuing operations consisted of the following in miilions

of dollars:

2007 2006
Equipment Qperations
Accounts payable:
Trade PAYADIBS ..o e e $1631 $1246
Dividends payable .. 10 89
DENBE oottt ettt s 101 62
Accrued expenses:
Employee benefits 1,060 981
Product warranties 549 507
Dealer sales program diSCOUNtS .........cccovvvimiicnenns 390 378
Dealer sales volume gdisCounts ........ooceeieieiererenenes 266 220
OthBr ..o e 632
TOMAL vt 4,115
Financial Services
Accounts payable:
Deposits withhetd from dealers and merchants......... 192 194
71 OO 251 178
Accrued expenses:
Unearned revenue 236 204
Interest payable.........cccooo 140 129
Employee benefits 73 69
OERET .. s e s 32 29
(o1 SO ORI VRO PO 924 803
EMInations” .....c.coccovvieinnnnsssssne e 450 435

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $5358 $4,483

* Primarily frade receivable valuation accounts which are reclassified as accrued
expenses by the Equipment Operations as a result of their trade receivables being
sold to Financial Services.




20. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings at October 31 consisted of the following
in millions of dollars:

2007 2008

Equipment Operations**
Notes and debentures:
7.85% debentures due 2010 ... S 306 § 306
6.95% notes due 2014: ($700 principal)
Swapped to variable interest rates

of 6.1% — 2007, 6.4% — 2006 ..o, 743* 734"
8.95% debentures due 2019 ......oecocvevvvvveei, 56 56
8-1/2% debentures dug 2022 ..o 105 105
6.55% debentures due 2028.............cccoiiiee 200 200
8.10% debentures due 2030...........coeeeeeviiiinenee 250 250
7.325% notes due 2037 300 300
Other notes 13 18

Total.......ccovevemns 1,973 1,969

Financial Services**
Notes and debentures:
Medium-term notes due 2008 — 2017:
(principal $6,842 - 2007, $5,820 - 2006)
Average interest rates of 5.1% - 2007,
4.8% —2006........coiiiiieeci s
3.90% notes due 2008: ($850 principal)
Swapped $350 to variable interest rates
0F5.9% — 2006......ccoivirirenecerernn e, 839"
6% notes due 2008: ($300 principal)
Swapped to variable interest rate
Of 5.6% = 2006..........ovoceverreesesseeesenen, 303 304+
7% notes due 2012: {$1,500 principal)
Swapped $1,225 to variable interest rates

of 6.7% — 2007, 6.4% — 2006 ........cccoovevevrnee. 1,580* 1,570"
5.10% debentures due 2013; ($650 principal)
Swapped {o variable interest rates
of 5.9% - 2007, 61% ~ 2006 .......cooovvccerernenne 640* 626"
Other NOES .....cvvieiie et e 452 471
TOAL v s 9,825 9,615
Long-term borrowings......................coooovveenn, $11,798  $11,584

* Includes fair value adiustments related to interest rate swaps.
** All interest rates are as of year end.

All of the Financial Services’ long-term borrowings
represent obligations of the credit subsidiaries.

The approximate principal amounts of the Equipment
Operations’ long-term borrowings maturing in each of the
next five years in millions of dollats are as follows: 2008 - $6,
2009 — $9, 2010 ~ $312, 2011 - none and 2012 - none.

The approximate principal amounts of the credit subsidiaries’
long-term borrowings maturing in each of the next five years in
millions of dollars are as follows: 2008 — $4,619, 2009 — §3,899,
2010 - $1,975, 2011 - $944 and 2012 - $1,881.

21. LEASES

At October 31, 2007, future minimum lease payments under
capital leases amounted to $29 million as follows: 2008 — $3,
2009 — §3, 2010 - $3, 2011 - $2, 2012 — $2 and later years $16.
Total rental expense for operating leases was $126 million in
2007, $118 million in 2006 and $111 million in 2005.

At October 31, 2007, future minimum lease payments under

operating leases amounted to $358 million as follows:
2008 — $100, 2009 — $73, 2010 — $47, 2011 - $32, 2012 - §26
and later years $80.

22. CONTINGENGIES AND COMMITMENTS

The company generally determines its total warranty liabilicy
by applying historical claims rate experience to the estimated
amount of equipment that has been sold and is still under
warranty based on dealer inventories and retail sales.
The historical claims rate is primarily determined by a review
of five-year claims costs and current quality developments.

A reconciliation of the changes in the warranty liability
in millions of dollars follows:

Warranty Liability

2007 2006
Beginning of year DAANCE .........ccccovvvvverersirani e, $ 507 % 535
PaymENts ......oecvinnrvevinercesiserees (480) (508)
Accruals for warranties ... 522 481
End of year Balance ..., $ 549 § 507

The premiums for the Equipment Operations’ extended
warranties are primarily recognized in income in proportion to
the costs expected to be incurred over the contract period.
These unamortized warranty premiums totaled $77 million and
$45 million at October 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The company has certain recourse obligations on financing
receivables that it has previously sold. If the receivables sold are
not collected, the company would be required to cover those
losses up to the amount of its recourse obligation. At October
31, 2007, the maximum amount of exposure to losses under
these agreements was $30 million. The estimated credit risk
associated with sold receivables totaled $1 million at October 31,
2007. This risk of loss is recogmized primarily in the interests
that continue to be held by the company and recorded on it’s
balance sheet (see Note 12). The company may recover 2
portion of any required payments incurred under these agree-
ments from the repossession of the equipment collateralizing the
receivables. At October 31, 2007, the maximum remaining
term of the receivables guaranteed was approximately three years.

At October 31, 2007, the company had approximately
$190 million of guarantees issued primarily to banks outside the
U.S. and Canada related to third-party receivables for the retail
financing of John Deere equipment. The company may recover
a portion of any required payments incurred under these
agreements from repossession of the equipment collateralizing
the receivables. At October 31, 2007, the company had accrued
losses of approximately $6 million under these agreements.

The maximum remaining term of the receivables guaranteed
at October 31, 2007 was approximately eight years.

The credit operations’ subsidiary, John Deere Risk
Protection, Inc., offers crop insurance products through a
managing general agency agreement (Agreement) with an
insurance company (Insurance Cartier) rated “Excellent” by
A.M. Best Company. As a managing general agent, John Deere
Risk Protection, Inc. will receive commissions from the
Insurance Carrier for selling crop insurance to producers.

The credit operations have guaranteed certain obligations under
the Agreement, including the obligation to pay the Insurance




Carrier for any uncollected premiums. At October 31, 2007, the
maximum exposure for uncollected premiums was approximately
$57 million. Substantially all of the credit operations’ crop
insurance risk under the Agreement has been mitigated by a
syndicate of private reinsurance companies. The reinsurance
companies are rated “Excellent” or higher by A.M. Best
Company. In the event of a widespread catastrophic crop failure
throughout the U.S. and the default of these highly rated private
reinsurance companies on their reinsurance obligations, the
credit operations would be required to reimburse the Insurance
Carrier for exposure under the Agreement of approximately
$489 million at October 31, 2007. The credit operations believe
that the likelihood of the occurrence of events that give nise to
the exposures under this Agreement is substantially remote and
as a result, at October 31, 2007, the credit operation’s accrued
liability under the Agreement was not material.

At October 31, 2007, the company had commitments of
approximately $379 million for the construction and acquisition
of property and equipment. At October 31, 2007, the company
also had pledged or restricted assets of $144 million, primarily as
collatera! for borrowings. Also, see Note 12 for restricted assets
associated with borrowings related to securitizations.

The company also had other miscellaneous contingent
liabilities totaling approximately $55 million at October 31, 2007,
for which it believes the probability for payment is remote.

The company is subject to various unresolved legal actions
which arise in the normal course of its business, the most
prevalent of which relate to product liability {including asbestos
related liability), reail credit, software licensing, patent and
trademark matters. Although it is not possible to predict with
certainty the outcome of these unresolved legal actions or the
range of possible loss, the company believes these unresolved legal
actions will not have a material effect on its financial statements.

23. CAPITAL STOCK

Changes in the common stock account in millions were
as follows:

stock, representing a $1 par value for each additional share issued.
The number of common shares the company is authonzed to
1ssue was also increased from 600 million to 1,200 million.

The number of authorized preferred shares, none of which has
been issued, remained at nine miilion.

In May 2007, the board of directors authorized plans to
repurchase up to 40 million (post stock split) additional shares of
common stock. The new repurchase plan went into effect after
the previous 52 million (post stock split) share repurchase plan,
announced in November 2003, was completed in August 2007.
Repurchases will be made at the company’s discretion in the
open market.

A reconciliation of basic and diluted income per share
follows in millions, except per share amounts:

2007 2006 2005

Continuing Operations:

INCOME...vvevrieirmseereriersaree e reeseeresnenens $1,821.7 $14532 $14140
Average shares outstanding™........c....oveee. 449.3 466.8 486.6
Basic income per share’..................... $ 405 $ 3NN § 290
Average shares outstanding”.............c.ee 449.3 4668  486.6
Effect of dilutive stock options™................ 57 4.8 6.3
Tota! potential shares outstanding”....... 455.0 4716 4929
Diluted income per share*................... $ 400 $ 308 3 287
Total Operations: }
NEt INCOME.....vivice e $1,821.7 $1,693.8 $1446.8
Average shares outstanding”.............c.coe.. 4493 466.8 486.6
Basic net income per share” ............. $ 405 $ 363 § 297
Total potential shares outstanding®....... 455.0 4716 492.9
Diluted net income per share”............. $ 400 $ 359 % 294

* Adjusted for two-for-one stock split.

All stock options outstanding were included in the
computation during 2007, 2006 and 2005, except 18 thousand
stock options in 2006 on a post stock split basis that had an
antidilucive effect under the treasury stock method.

24. STOCK OPTION AND RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

Number of

Shares Issued”  Amount

Balance at October 31, 2004 .......c.ovevvvveereenenns 5364 $2,044

Stock options and Other ... eeeeeereerneerrneceenenn. 38

Balance at Qctober 31, 2005.......cceceuenne 536.4 2,082

Stack options and other™™ ............ccovevcrnr. 122

Balance at October 31, 2006™" ... 536.4 2,204
Transfer from retained earnings for

two-for-one Stock Spiit.....coevcee s 268

Stock options and other ... eeveeeenceiieees 305

Balance at October 31,2007 ........................ 5364 §2777

* Adjusied for two-for-one stock split.
** See Note 1 for reclassification.

On November 14, 2007, the stockholders of the company
approved a two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a
100 percent stock dividend to stockholders of record on
November 26, 2007, distributed on December 3, 2007.
This stock split has been recorded as of October 31, 2007 by
a transter of $268 million from retained earnings to common

40

In the first quarter of 2006, the company adopted FASB
Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment,
(see Note 1 for “Share-Based Compensation” for 2005
information).

The company issues stock options and restricted stock
awards to key employees under plans approved by stockholders.
Restricted stock is also issued to nonemployee directors for
their services as directors under a plan approved by stockholders.
Options are awarded with the exercise price equal to the market
price and become exercisable in one to three years after grant.
Options expire ten years after the date of grant. Restricted stock
awards generally vest after three years. The company recognizes
the compensation cost on these stock options and restricted
stock awards either immediately if the employee is eligible to
retire or on a straight-line basis over the vesting period for the
entire award. According to these plans at October 31, 2007,
the company is authorized to grant an additional 18.7 miliion
shares related to stock options or restricted stock on a post stock
split basis.




The fair value of each option award was estimated on the
date of grant using a binomial lattice option valuation model.
Expected volatilities are based on implied volacilities from
traded call options on the company’s stock. The expected
volatilities are constructed from the following three components:
the starting implied volatility of short-term call options traded
within a few days of the valuation date; the predicted implied
volatilicy of long-term call options; and the trend in implied
volatilities over the span of the call options’ time to maturity.
The company uses historical data to estimate option exercise

behavior and employee termination within the valuation model.

The expected term of options granted is derived from the
output of the option valuation model and represents the period
of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding.
The risk-free rates utilized for periods throughout the contractual
life of the options are based on U.S. Treasury security yields at
the time of grant,

The assumptions used for the binomial lattice model to
determine the fair value of options follow:

2007 2006
Risk-free interest rate ... 44%-50% 3.8%-45%
Expected dividends 2.0% 1.8%
Expected volatility..............cccrriivievrerenns 26.2% - 28.8% 25.3% - 27.5%
Weighted-average volatiity.........c.ccovveeee 26.3% 25.4%
Expected term (in years)............o.oovevviees 6.7-76 69-77

Stock option activity at October 31, 2007 and changes
during 2007 in millions of dollars and shares except for share
price follow:

Remaining
Contractual Aggregate
Exercise  Term Intrinsic
Shares  Price™  (Years) Value
Outstanding at beginning of
264  $728.98
3.2 48.38
(11.2) 2740
(1 37.08
Qutstanding at end of year* ... 18.3 333 647  §7221
Exercisable at end of year*...... 10.3 28.12 5.54 458.4

* Adjusted for two-for-one stock split.
** Weighted-averages

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options
granted during 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $14.10, $10.10 and
$9.99 on a post stock split basis, respectively. The total intrinsic
values of options exercised during 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
$320 million, $236 million and $102 million, respectively.
During 2007, 2006 and 2005, cash received from stock option
exercises was $286 million, $328 million and $154 million with
tax benefits of $119 million, $87 million and $38 million,
respectively.
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The company’s nonvested restricted shares at October 31,
2007 and changes during 2007 in millions of dollars and
shares follow:

Grant-Date
. Shares  Fair Valug**
Nonvested at beginning of
BRI ettt 1.4 $ 3345
Grantad” .o 3 4913
VESTBA" ..o (.5) 31.33
Nonvested at end of ygar ... v, 1.2 38.09

* Adiusted for two-for-one stock split.
** Weighted-averages

During 2007 and 2006, the total share-based compensa-
tion expense was $82 million and $91 million with an income
tax benefit recognized in net income of $30 mllion and
%34 million. At Qctober 31, 2007, there was $28 million of
total unrecognized compensation cost from share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the plans, which is
related to nonvested shares. This compensation is expected to
be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately
2 years. The total fair values of stock options and restricted
shares vested during 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $69 million,
$63 million and $55 million, respectively.

Prior to adoption of the new standard, the pro-forma
disclosure used a straight-line amortization of the stock option
and restricted stock expense over the vesting period according
to the prior standard, FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, which included employees eligible
to retire. Under the new standard, the awards granted after the
adoption must be recognized in expense over the requisite
service period, which is either immediate if the employee is
eligible to retire, or over the vesting period if the employee
is not eligible to retire. The amount of expense for awards
granted prior to adoption of the new standard for employees
eligible to retire that continued to be amortized over the
nominal vesting period in 2007 and 2006 was approximately
$12 million and $19 million pretax, $8 million and $12 million
after-tax ($.02 per share and $.03 per share, basic and diluted},
respectively.

The company currently uses shares which have been
repurchased through its stock repurchase programs to satisfy
share option exercises. At October 31, 2007, the company
had 96.8 million shares in treasury stock and 34.9 million
shares remaining to be repurchased under its current publicly
announced 40.0 million share repurchase program on a post
stock split basis.

25. EMPLOYEE INVESTMENT AND SAVINGS PLANS

The company has defined contribution plans related to employee
investment and savings plans primarily in the U.S. Company
contributions and costs under these plans were $114 million in
2007, 3100 million in 2006 and $81 million in 2005.




26. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ITEMS

27. FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS

Other comprehensive income itemns under FASB Statement
No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, are transactions
recorded in stockholders’ equity during the year, excluding
net income and transactions with stockholders. Following are
the items included in other comprehensive income (loss) and
the related tax effects in millions of dollars:

Before Tax After
Tax {Expense) Tax
Amount  Credit Amount
2005
Minimum pension liability adjustment ......... $ (86 § 34 § (52
Cumulative translation adjustment.............. 60 1 61
Unrealized gain on derivatives:
Hedging gain..........cccovvecrrimmmernniens 6 (2) 4
Reclassification of realized
loss to et iNCOme........ccooovovvvemvncrnne 14 {5} g
Net unrealized gain............ccocecrvnrvreeecens 20 ) 13
Unrealized holding loss and net loss
ON INVESTMENES™ 1uvicniiiiei e (9) 3 (B}
Total other comprehensive income {oss) ... $ (159 § 31 § 16
* Reclassification of realized gains or losses to net income were not material.
2006
Minimum pension fiability adjustment ......... $ 34 5§ (13) § 21
Cumulative translation adjustment............ 73 7 80
Unrealized hedging gain and net gain
ON BriVaLIVES ™ ccvvve v vevereceen 1 i
Unrealized 108s on investments:
Holding 1085 ..o (5) 2 (3)
Reclassification of realized
[055 10 NEY INCOME .....eeeecccceen 4 (2) 2
Net unrealized 1085 ... eeercrnnnnnnens (1} (1}
Total other comprehensive income (loss)... $ 106 $§ (5) § 101
* Reclassification of realized gains or losses to net inceme were not material.
2007
Minimum pension liability adjustment.......... $ 104 $ (38) § 66
Cumulative translation adjustment............. 325 4 329
Unrealized foss on derivatives:
Hedging 1088 .....voveveree s (16} 6 (10}
Reclassification of realized gain
{0 Net INCOME..vovvvecveiere e (6) 4
Net unrealized loss {22) 8 (14)
Unrealized loss on investments;
HOIING 1088 v (6) 2 {4)
_ Reclassification of realized
foss to net income 4 {1 3
Net unrealized 1088 .....ccevevvvee e 2 1 (1)
Total other comprehensive income (loss)... $ 405 § (25) $ 380
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The fair values of financial instruments that do not approximate
the carrying values in the financial statements at October 31 in
millions of dollars follow:

2007 2006
Carrying  Fair  Carrying  Fair
Value Value Value  Value
Financing receivables ..............ccco.... $15631 $15,474 $14,004 $13,799

$ 2,289
$ 2344

$ 2284 § 2371 $ 2348
$ 2356 § 2403 § 2402

Restricted financing receivables.......

Short-term secured borrowings™.......

Long-term borrowings:

Equipment Operations ................. $ 1973 % 2172 $ 1,969 § 2,197
Financial Services .......cccvivrvvn. 0825 9897 9615 9678
TotEl...o s $11,798 $12,069 $11,584 $11875

* See Note 18.

Fair Value Estimates

Fair values of the long-term financing receivables with fixed rates
were based on the discounted values of their related cash flows
at current market interest rates. The fair values of the remaining
financing receivables approximated the carrying amounts.

Fair values of long-tenm borrowings and short-term secured
borrowings with fixed rates were based on the discounted values
of their related cash flows at current market interest rates.
Certain long-term borrowings have been swapped to current
variable interest rates. The carrving values of these long-term
borrowings include adjustments related to fair value hedges.

Derivatives

All derivative instruments are recorded at fair values and
classified as either other assets or accounts payable and accrued
expenses on the balance sheet (see Note 1}.

Interest Rate Swaps
The company enters into interest rate swap agreements primarily
to more closely match the fixed or floating interest rates of the
credit operations’ borrowings to those of the assets being funded.
For transactions not designated as hedges under FASB Statement
No. 133, the fair value gains or losses from these interest rate
swaps are recognized currently in interest expense, generally
offsetting the interest expense on the exposures being hedged.
Certain interest rate swaps were designated as hedges
of future cash flows from varable interest rate borrowings.
The effective portion of the fair value gains or losses on these
cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income
and subsequently reclassified into interest expense as payments are
accrued and the swaps approach maturity. These amounts offset
the effects of interest rate changes on the related borrowings.
Gains or losses in other comprehensive income related to cash
flow hedges that have been discontinued are amortized to
interest expense over the remaining duration of the original
forecasted transaction that will still occur. The total amount of
gain recorded in other comprehensive income at October 31,
2007 that is expected to be reclassified to interest expense in
the next twelve months if interest rates remain unchanged is
approximately $2 million after-tax. These swaps mature in up
to forty-one months.




Certain interest rate swaps were designated as fair value
hedges of fixed-rate, long-term borrowings. The effective
portions of the fair value gains or losses on these swaps were
offset by fair value adjustments in the underlying borrowings.

Any ineffective portions of the gains or losses on all cash
flow and fair value interest rate swaps designated as hedges were
recognized currently in interest expense and were not material.
There were no gains or losses reclassified from unrealized in
other comprehensive income to realized in earnings as a result
of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges because it is probable
that the original forecasted transaction will not occur. There were
no components of cash flow or fair value hedges chat were
excluded from the assessment of effectiveness.

The company has certain interest rate swap agreements
that are not designated as hedges under FASB Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Denvative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
and the fair value gains or losses are recognized currently in
interest expense. These swaps are used to facilitate certain
borrowings.

The cash flows from all interest rate swaps are related o
managing interest rate exposures and are recorded in operating
activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts, Swaps and Options

The company has entered into foreign exchange forward
contracts, swaps and options in order to manage the currency
exposure of certain receivables, liabikiries and expected
inventory purchases. For transactions not designated as hedges
under FASB Staternent No. 133, the fair value gains or losses
from these foreign currency derivatives are recognized currently
in cost of sales or other operating expenses, generally offsetting
the foreign exchange gains or losses on the exposures being
managed.

The company has designated certain foreign exchange
forward contracts as cash flow hedges of expected inventory
purchases. The effective portions of the fair value gains or losses
on these cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive
income and subsequently reclassified into cost of sales as the
inventory costs are recognized in cost of sales. These amounts
offset the effect of the changes in foreign exchange rates on the
related inventory purchases. The amount of the gain recorded
in other comprehensive income that is expected to be reclassified
to cost of sales in the next twelve months is approximately
$.1 mullion after-tax. These contracts mature in up to six months.

Any ineffective portions of the gains or losses on all cash
flow and fair value foreign exchange contracts and swaps
designated as hedges were recognized currently in earnings and
were not material. There were no gains or losses reclassified
from unrealized in other comprehensive income to realized in
earnings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges
because it 1s probable that the original forecasted transaction
will not occur. There were no components of cash flow or fair
value hedges that were excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness.

The cash flows from foreign exchange forward contracts,
swaps and options are related to purchases of inventory and sales
of equipment and are recorded in operating activities in the
consolidated statement of cash Hows.

28. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA DATA FOR THE YEARS
ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

The company’s operations are organized and reported in four
major business segments described as follows:

The agricuitural equipment segment manufactures and
distributes a full line of farm equipment and related service parts
- including tractors; combine, cotton and sugarcane harvesters;
tillage, seeding and soil preparation machinery; sprayers; hay and
forage equipment; integrated agricultural management systems
technology; and precision agricultural irmgation equipment.

The commercial and consumer equipment segment
manufactures and distributes equipment, products and service
parts for commercial and residential uses — including tractors
for lawn, garden, commercial and utility purposes; mowing
equipment, including walk-behind mowers; golf course
equipment; utility vehicles; landscape and nursery products;
irrigation equipment; and other outdoor power products.

The construction and forestry segment manufactures,
distributes to dealers and sells at retail a broad range of machines
and service parts used in construction, earthmoving, matenial
handling and timber harvesting — including backhoe loaders;
crawler dozers and loaders; four-wheel-dnive loaders;
excavators; motor graders; articulated dump trucks; landscape
loaders; skid-steer loaders; and log skidders, feller bunchers, log
loaders, log forwarders, log harvesters and related attachments,

The products and services produced by the segments
above are marketed primarily through independent retail dealer
networks and major retail outlets.

The credit segment primarily finances sales and leases by
John Deere dealers of new and used agricultural, commercial
and consumer, and construction and forestry equipment.

In addition, it provides wholesale financing to dealers of the
foregoing equipment, provides operating loans, finances retail
revolving charge accounts, offers certain crop risk mitigation
products and invests in wind energy generation.

The company’s tractors and implements segment and
the harvesting equipment segment have been aggregated in the
agricultural equipment segment described abave since they have
similar economic characteristics as well as similar products and
services, production processes, types of cuscomers and methods
used for distribution of their products.

Certain operations do not meet the materiality threshold
of FASB Statement No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information, and have been grouped
together as “Other.” Due to the sale of the health care
operations in 2006 (see Note 2), the health care operations
were reclassified from “Other” to discontinued operations for
all years presented. Applicable segment information as follows
has been revised for this reclassification. The remaining
“Other” mformation consists of certain miscellaneous service
operations that do not meet the materiality threshold.

Because of integrated manufacturing operations and
common administrative and marketing support, a substantial
number of allocations must be made to determine operating
segment and geographic area data. Intersegment sales and
revenues represent sales of components and finance charges,
which are generally based on market prices.




information relating to operations by operating segment
in millions of dollars follows. In addition to the following
unaffiliated sales and revenues by segment, intersegment sales
and revenues in 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
agricultural equipment net sales of $104 million, $138 million
and $105 million, construction and forestry net sales of
$9 million, $10 million and $13 million, and credit revenues
of $276 million, $216 million and $237 mullion, respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENTS 2007 2006 2005

Net sales and revenues
Unaffiliated customers:

Agricultural equipment net sales ............ $12121 $10,232 $10,567
Commercial and censumer equipment

NELSABS.....ove i 4,333 3,877 3605
Construction and forestry

NEL SAIBS ..o e 5036 5775 5229

Total net 8alBS........ccceeecerieiveeen. - 21,489 19,884 19,401

Credit revenues 2,004 1819 1,450

Other revenues” 489 445 340
TOtal i $24,082 $22148 $21,191

* Qther revenues are primarily the Equipment Operations’ revenues for finance
and interest income, and other income as disclosed in Note 30, net of certain
intercompany eliminations.

Operating profit
Agricultural BQUIPMENt.........erreesvessninsons $1443 % 882 § 970
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 304 221 183
Construction and forestry........cvvveeeereeen. 571 802 689
Credit” e 548 520 431
QBT e 5 1

Total operating profit.........c.coccooninnnees 2871 2426 2333
INEEIESt INCOME. i rserersirerrrerees 103 75 103
[MVeStmENt iNCOME «.oeevvevee e, 75 83 25
INtErest BXPENSE .v.vvvveeceer et (181 (193) °~ (217)

Foreign exchange gain (loss) from
equipment operations’ financing

ACHVItIES Lo 3 12 ]
Corporate eXpenses — Net........cocovceemeeeenee. (166)  (208)  (130)
INCOME tXES....evevvrevrreaneeian (883}  (742) (699)

TOtAl e (H049) (973} (919)
Income from coniinuing operations............. 1822 1453 1414
Income from discontinued operations ......... 241 33

e 1822 $ 1694 § 1,447

" Qperating profit of the credit business segment includes the effect of iis interest
expense and foreign exchange gains or lossas,

Netincome............ccooeevenn.

Interest income*
Agricultural equipment..........cccwmccicrn. 3 10 8 78 B
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 6 6 5
Construction and fOrestrY.......oo. v creereenees 4 4 4
Credit™* 1,758 1570 1241
Corporate 103 75 103
Intercompany** (293)  (299)  (28%)
TOE 1o erenme e $ 1,588 $ 1,367 $1,078

* Does not include finance rental income for equipment on operating leases.

** Includes interest income from Equipment Operations for financing trade receivables.

(continued)

OPERATING SEGMENTS 2007 2006 2005

Interest expense
Agricuttural equipment” .........cooccvrevirvienes $ 152 § 142 § 138
Commercial and consumer equipment* ...... 56 57 52
Construction and forestry™ .....c.oooeeeriinees 39 44 34
CrEit vuues e e e e 1,017 876 607
COMPOraE....cvoveriiiereeiee e eces 181 193 211
INEICOMPANY™ ..o e {294) (295  (281)
TOML ... ecccrrireeeeeeeercrie s 3 1181 $ 1,017 & 761

* Includes interest compensation to ¢redit oparations for financing trade receivables.

Depreciation* and amortization

expense

Agricultural eqUIpMENt ... 3 274§ 255 & 236

Commercial and consumer equipment........ 80 82 73

Construction and forestry.........c.coovvnneee 75 70 66

Cradit......oourereeenrrninee 315 284 250

Discontinued operations...........ccccvovvennn. 9
TOWH v eeeees . § 744§ 691 & 636

* Includes depreciation for equipment on operating leases.

Equity in income (loss) of
unconsolidated affiliates

Agricultural equipment.....coerevcvcereceme 312§ 10§ 8
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 1 1 (1)
Construction and forestry.....ccoevvviieeeenen. 16 10 (2}
Credite. e, 1
TOM oot $ 20% 218§ ]
Identifiable operating assets
Agricultural equipment........c.cooeeererrernens $ 4227 $3342 $3383
Commercial and consumer equipment....... 1,688 1,383 1460
Construction and forestry.............. perreeees 2334 2386 2,078
Credit. oo 23518 21,316 19,057
OB e e 193 157 17
COMPOTAtE” 1evvv e 6615 6136 7,291
Discontinued operations........c.cc.ccoveveeene. 351
TOMAl vecrrrreeeee e 538,976 $34,720 $33,637

* Corporate assets are primarily the Equipment Operations’ retirement benefits,
defarred income 1ax assets, marketable securities and cash and cash equivalents
as disclosed in Note 30, nei of certain intercompany eliminations.

Capital additions
Agricultural equipment ... & 386 $ 354 & 333
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 85 43 67
Construction and farestry..........cocoeeeecnenn 118 92 77
CrEOIE. ... vvererrcerer e et 475 292 46
Discontinued 0perations...........cco.ceereereis 1
TOMAL oo e 31084 $ 781 § 524
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates
Agricultural equipment.........ccooooi e, $ 3B/IF 3NE 2
Commercial and consumer equipment........ 5 4 3
Construction and forestry..........cccceerviinnee 104 84 80
Cradit. v caree e 5 5 4
TOAY oo e $ 150 $ 124 § 107




The company views and has historically disclosed its
operations as consisting of two geographic areas, the U.S. and
Canada, and outside the U.S. and Canada, shown below in
millions of dollars. No individual foreign country’s net sales
and revenues were material for disclosure purposes.

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS 2007 2006 2005

Net sales and revenues
Unaffiliated customers:
U.S. and Canada:

Equipment Operations
net 5ales (89%)" ..o $13,829 $13851 § 13,511
Financial Services revenues (83%)... 1,925 1,655 - 1,251
TOMAL e 15754 15,506 14,762
COutside U.S. and Canada:
Equipment Operations net sales......... 7,660 6,033 5,890
Financial Services revenuss............... 234 216 200
Total. ..o 7,894 6,249 6,090
Other MeVBNUES ......coveeerrcvrinireee e 434 393 339
TOMAL s §24,082 $22148 $ 21,191

* The percentages indicate the approximate propartion of each amount that relates to
the U.S. only and are based upan a three-year average for 2007, 2006 and 2005,

Operating profit
U.S. and Canada:

Equipment Operations ................. $ 1,539 % 1445 $ 1,298

Financial SErvices ........cooveeriiininan, 486 470 43
TOAL . et s 2,025 1,915 1,729
Outside U.S. and Canada:

Equipment Operations ..o, 779 460 544

Financial Services ...........coccovveeennn. 67 51 60

Totah. oo 846 5 604

TOMAE s $2871 § 2426 § 2333
Property and equipment

US s $2283 § 1730 $§ 1413
GEIMENY ..ovvveeeeceeee e 381 320 284
Other COUNTES....oe. e 870 714 647

Total ..o e $3534 $ 2764 $ 2,344

29. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Commion stock per share sales prices from New York Stock
Exchange composite transactions quotations follow:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter
2007 Market price*
High. oo, 55070 $58.25 $6698 37865
LOW ..o & 4163 $ 49.00 $ 53,76 $56.96
2006 Market price*
HIgh o $36.30 $4450 $4599 §$4524
LOW ..o $30.20 $3491 $3490 $3345

* Adjusted for two-for-ong stock split,

At October 31, 2007, there were 27,631 holders of record
of the company’s $1 par value common stock.

Quarterly information with respect to net sales and
revenues and earnings is shown in the following schedule. Such
information is shown in millions of dollars except for per share
amounts.

First ~ Second  Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2007
Net sales and revenues............... $4425 $6,882 $6,634 $6,141
NELSAIES.ooveriieerirersnrinen e 3815 6,266 5985 5423
Gross profit......ccoeveeeveievee, 865 1560 1442 1,369
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes................ 366 829 802 619
NetinCOME......coov v 239 624 537 422
Income per share from

continuing operations — basic* .. 53 1.38 120 96
Net income per share — basic* ...... 530 ©1.38 1.20 96
Income per share from

continuing operations — diluted*.. 52 1.36 118 94
Net income per share — diluted” ... 52 1.36 118 .94
Dividends declared per sharg*....... 22 22 22 .25
Dividends paid per share” ............. A9% 22 22 22
2006
Net sales and revenuss................. $4202 $6,562 $6,267 $5117
Netsales.....c..coovevevcecveveeee,. 3,691 6,029 5677 4,487
Gross profit ... 795 1,486 1,279 962
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes................. 340 785 681 368
Net iNCOME.......ccoovvreerer e, 236 745 436 277
Income per share from

continuing operations — basic*.. 47 1.10 93 61
Net income per share - basic* ...... 50 1.58 93 .61
Income per share from

continuing eperations — diluted™ . A7 1.08 92 60
Net income per share — diluted” ... A9 1.56 92 60
Dividends declared per share™.......  19% 194 9% 19%
Dividends paid per share® ............  .15% 194 i9%  19%

Net income per share for ach quarter must be computed independentty. As a result,
their sum may not equal the total net income per share for the year,

* Adjusted for two-for-ong stock split.
** See Notes 2 and 3.

Dividend and Other Events

A quarterly dividend of 8.25 per share on a post stock split
basis was declared at the board of directors meeting on
November 29, 2007, payable on February 1, 2008 to stock-
holdets of record on December 31, 2007.

In December 2007, the company’s credit operations issued
$500 million of 4.95% medium-term notes due in 2012 and
entered into interest rate swaps related to these notes, which
swapped the fixed rate to a vaniable rate of 5.58% as of
December 13, 2007.




30. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA

INCOME STATEMENT
For the Years Ended October 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{In millions of dollars)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS*
2007 2006 2005

Net Sales and Revenues
NEE SAIBS ..vvveee ettt es et es e rren s ensens $214891 $19,8840 § 194014
Finance and interest income 123.4 92.2 118.8
Other INCOME ...vvvveeeeirrrrenee e eececanns 403.7 3839 3081

TOMAD oot s eebe bbb e 22.016.2 20,3601 19,828.3
Costs and Expenses
COSE OF SAIBS ... orvcecee e s 16.254.0 15,362.0 15179.3
Research and development eXpeNSES ... ccerrmeiininimsmnns 816.8 725.8 677.3
Selling, administrative and general expenses .. 2,2370 1,9421 1,766.8
INLErESt EXDENSE (ivvereeee e 181.2 1934 21.3
Interest compensation 1o Financial Services.... 246.4 243.7 223.1
Other 0perating EXPENSES .......ccooocrcmmninisiniireresiesessessesins 157.8 2399 146.4

TOMD oot s et et 19,893.2 18,706.9 18,204.2
Income of Gonsolidated Group before

INCOME TAXES ... renere e 21230 1,653.2 1,624.1
Provision for iNCOME tAXES «..veveviveerere s s 693.8 564.4 527.7
Income of Consolidated Group...............cmrinicniiironenins 1,429.2 1,088.8 1,096.4
Equity in Income of Unconsolidated

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

GBI ettt 360.8 342.8 3174

DHNEE e 37 216 2

TORA] ettt enses bt e 3925 3p4.4 3176

Income from Continuing Operations ... 1,821.7 1,453.2 1.414.0
Income from Discontinued Operations ... 240.6 32.8
NERINCOIMB ..ottt $ 18217 8 16938 § 14468

FINANCIAL SERVICES
2007 2006 2005

$22252 $18803 $ 16015
214.3 163.6 86.1

24395 21439 1,687.6

390.8 384.3 322.3
1,017.3 876.1 607.3

478.8 3629 2756

1,886.9 1,623.3 1,205.2

552.6 520.6 4824
189.3 1773 170.8

363.3 3433 3116

4 4 6

A 4 B
3637 343.7 322
2406 32.8

$ 3637 $ 5843 § 3450

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis except for the health care operations reported on a discontinued basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The "Equipment Operations” reflect the basis of consalidation described in
Note 1 to the consclidated financial statements. The consolidated group data in the “Equipment Operations” income statement reflect the results of the
agricultural equipment, commercial and consumer equipment and construction and forestry operations. The supplemental *Financial Services™ data
represent primarily Deere & Company's credit operations with the health care operations reported on a discontinued basis. Transactions between the

“Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services™ have been eliminated to arrive at the consolidated financial statements.
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30. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA (continued)

BALANCE SHEET
As of October 31, 2007 and 2006
{In millions of doltars except per share amounts)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS*
2007 2006

ASSETS
Cash and cash BQUIVAIBALS. ..........c.oveeee e ces st ettt $ 20196 $ 14767
Marketable SBOUMHIES 1.viviiviiiieisirier et bbb st s bbbt e 1,468.2 1,709.0
Receivables from unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates........ccuoirniicins 437.0 494.2
Trade accounts and notes receivable - NBL.....co.cce e s 1,028.8 986.7
Financing reCeivablES - NBL ..o e e 11.0 5.3
Restricted financing receivables - Nel........co.oceerir e s
Other recaivables ......oevvrcce e, 524.0 3179
Equipment on operating leases - net
INVEMIOMIES ©.ee vttt b bbb 23373 1,957.3
Property and eQUIDIMENt = NEL ..o sttt 27214 2,414.0
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affifiates.... 2,643.4 2,665.3
GOOAWIll ... e 1,234.3 11100
Other intangible aSSBES - MEL ... s 1310 56.4
REtiremMEnt BENEIS ... e 1,9676 26303
Deferred income taxes 1,418.5 6815
ONBE BSSEES....c.e e ettt e er et et ree ettt s sttt eene s 3476 306.1
TOAl ASSBES ... $18,289.7 $ 16,8107
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
SNOF-TEIME DOITOWINGS . .vvev vt er et $ 1298 § 2825
Payables to unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 136.5 31.0
Accounts payatile and aCCTUBH EXDENSES.....c.vv s s s er s rnseenes 4.884.4 4115.2
ACCTUBA TAXES ..ottt st rb bt 2424 137.9
Deferred INCOME TAXES..........co.cvoeeeecer e si e 99.8 16.8
LONG-TErm DOMTOWINGS ..o s rere e 1973.2 1,9695
Retirement benefits and other ADIIHES ............ooveve e e - 3,6678 27666

Total liabilities.............. OOV 11,1339 9,319.5
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1 par value (authorized — 1,200,000,000*" shares;

issued — 536,431,204 shares in 2007 and 2006),

At STATEE VAIUB. .....vev i iiiieeiee et bttt 27770 2,203.5
Comman stock in treasury, 96,795,090"* shares in 2007

and 81,965,080 shares in 2006, 81 COBt.........cccveerrcerrnorienmmsns s {4,015.4) (2,673.4)
RELRINEH BAMINGS.......c.ovvveeeceeeeeeceee et cenrs st ae s rss et as s aes s e 9,031.7 7,886.8

TOIBL 1ottt bttt a e bttt 7793.3 7416.9
Retirement benefits adjustmant........coociieisesse e (1113 -
Minimum pension liability adjustment {87.6)
Cumulative translation adiustment..........c.co.ceveveneee, e 4794 150.3
Unrealized gain {I083) 0N derVALIVES .....covvvvirieenieriie s e eseens (7.8} 68
Unrealized gain on iNVESIMENES. .......ocoiovivrrmiriiisi ittt enrane 318 4.8

Accumulated other CoOmMprenensive INCOME (I0SS). ... errvrecnrimrsnereens (637.5) 743

Totat StOCKNOIAEIS” BAUIY .vvcvvvvrreeer et e 7,155.8 74912
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ..., $ 18,289.7 $ 16,810.7

FINANCIAL SERVICES
2007 2006
$ 2501 $ 2108

155.1 1077

2 1

24759 2,485.6
15,6202 13,908.7
2,289.0 2,370.8
74.2 130.4
1,705.3 1493.9
8126 3496

5.1 46

9.0 121

461 106
259.3 298.3

$ 23,7111 $ 21473.2
$ 98397 $ 78386
4074 472.2
924.2 8031
337 146
148.8 158.0
98250 9,614.5
331 263
21,2119 18,9273
11224 1,014.1
12288 1,453.2
2,351.2 2,467.3
153.6 65.2
7.7 87

21 47

148.0 786
2.499.2 2,545.9

$ 237111 $ 214732

* Deere & Company with Financial Services on the equity basis except for the health care operations reported on a discontinued basis.

** Adjusted for two-for-one stock split effective November 26, 2007.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Equipment Cperations” reflect the basis of consolidation described in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The supplemental "Financial Services” data represent primarily Deere & Company’s credit operations.

Transactions between the “Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services” have been eliminated to arrive at the consolidated financial statements.
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30. SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATING DATA {continued)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended Gctober 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{in millions of dollars)

EQUIPMENT OPERATIONS* FINANCIAL SERVICES
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NEEINCOME. ...oocvo ettt e e $ 18217 § 16938 $ 14468 $ 3637 $ 5843 § 3450

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Provision for doubtful receivables...........o.oeu 7.5 14.6 13.2 63.5 51.4 12.9
Provision for depreciation and amortization.... 429.2 406.8 3774 3746 323.2 2979
Gain on the sale of @ BUSINESS ..c.c.ovveeiinrereeeriis (356.0) (356.0)
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries
ane AffIBALES ... 2007 (273.7) (181.8} {3 (.3} (.B)
Provision (credit) for deferred inCOME taXes ... 3941 191 (40.2) (43.3) (3.4) QN
Changes in assets and liabilities:
RECEIVADIES ..o e e (38.8} (108.4) 16.7 (17.0) (20.6} (4.3)
IIVEMIOTIES ..vvvvivirs ettt e s (B7.9) 2118 (68.5)
Accounts payable and accrued EXpENSES ..cc...verervrrreererns 329.8 838 2956 104.0 128.7 78.5
Accrued income taxes payable/freceivable ... (5.1} 454 143.3 15.6 (15.4) 6.5
Retirement benefit accruals/prepaid pension costs............ (172.3) (395.1) (313.7) 9.0 4.9 17
DHRET .o s 157.6 (30.5) (27.4) (18.8) 105.2 (143.%)
Net cash provided by operating activities...........cooevenee 26887 1,311.3 1,661.4 851.0 792.2 585.4
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Collections of reCeIVabIBS. .......ccovrviecviiiire e 30,1781 29,067.2 274073
Proceeds from sales of financing receivables.........c.coooirns 229.9 139.6 1327
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities....... 24535 2,901.6 1,016.0 5.0 104.4 489
Proceeds from sales of equipment on operating leases ............... 5.6 355.2 3109 393.5
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash sold..........cev 77.2 4401 50.0
Cost of receivables aCqUIrEd ..o {31,195.0) (30,907.0) (30,415.2)
Purchases of marketable SECUMIES ... s (2,200.8) {2,447.3) (3175.4) (50.8) (118.3) (100.9}
Purchases of property and equIpmENt ... (557.3) (4931} (466.9) (465.2) {(272.9) 45.7}
Cost of equipment on operating leases acquired ... (825.6) (808.9) (687.4)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquited.........ceuvie e, (189.3) (55.7} (169.7)
01151 USROS PO (97.2) 324 (10.5) 48.6 (106.3) (42.9)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities ......... (513.9) 3780 - (2,750.9) (1,719.8)  (2,591.3) (3,309.7)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase {decrease) in short-term bormawings ..........ccooeevvcvrrreeee (208.0) {140.6) 96.7 307.5 1,349.3 1,717.7
Change in intercompany receivables/payables..............occocoven. 676 (184.4) 11327 (67.6) 47 {1177.4)
Proceeds from fang-term Dorrowings..........c. e, 4,283.8 3140.2 38054
Payments of lang-term Dorrowings ..., {7.8) (782.7) (76.6) (3128.7) (2737.8) (14330
Proceeds from issuance of COmmOn StOCK ....e.ccccovvvcniiciricen s 285.7 3276 153.6
Repurchases of commaon stock (+,517.8) (1,299.3) (918.9)
DIVIHBAAS PAIG. ... evecvvvvrerreeesssrerssecenesseess e ieee e (386.7) {348.4) (280.7) (588.1) (106.7) (166.7)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation............... 102.2 85.6
THRIBT 1veevvtet e et 37 (10.6) (2.0) 93.4 40.8 237
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities......... (1,661.1) {2,352.8) 95.8 900.3 1,690.5 2,769.7
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash
and Cash Equivalents...............cccooooociiiceicieininins 29.2 16.6 {22.2) 16.8 5.2 2.8
Net Increase (Decrease) in Gash and Cash Equivalents..... 542.9 (646.9) {1,015.9) 48.3 {103.4) 48.2
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year.........c..... 1476.7 21236 31395 2108 314.2 266.0
Cash and Gash Equivalents at End of Year.....ccococonnncenne $ 20196 $ 14767 & 21236 $ 2501 % 2108 § 342

* Deere & Company with Financial Servicas on the equity basis.

The supplemental consolidating data is presented for informational purposes. The “Equipment Operations” reflect Deere & Cornpany with Financial Services on
the Equity Basis. The supplemental "Financial Services" dasa represent primarily Deere & Company’s credit and health care operations. Transactions between
the “Equipment Operations” and “Financial Services” have been eliminated to arrive at the consolidated financial statements.
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DEERE &« COMPANY

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
{Doltars in millions except per share amounts)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Net SAIES AN FEVEIUES ..o $24,082 322148 $21191  $19.204 $14856 $13206 $12694 $12650 $11.289 $13.389
NEE SIS v 21,488 19,884 19,401 17673 13349 11703 11,077 11,169 8,701 11,926
Finance and inferest inCome ...ccovvvveeiivnrenens 2,089 1,777 1,440 1,196 1,276 1,339 1,445 1,321 1,104 1,007
Research and development expenses................. 817 726 677 612 577 528 590 542 458 445
Selling, administrative and general expenses ...... 2,621 2324 2,086 1,984 1,623 1,548 1,609 1,407 1,265 1,213
INtErest BXPENSE .....cvcvvivvisiieeemersevnsierirrsmniene 1,151 1,018 761 592 629 637 766 677 557 519
income {loss} from continuing operations............ 1,822 1,453 1,414 1,398 620 296 (83) 470 227 1,018
NEt INCOME (088} ...ocrrervrirrecrmcrrenerercsrsenennnns 1,822 1,694 1,447 1,406 643 319 (64) 486 239 1,021
Return on Net SAlES........covecnr e e 8.5% 8.5% 7.5% 8.0% 4.8% 2.7% {B)% 43% 2.5% 56%
Return on beginning stockholders’ equity ........... 24.3% 247%  226% 3B1%  203% 8.0% (1.5)% 11.9% 5.9% 24.6%
Income (loss) per share from

continuing operations — basic” ................. $ 405 § 311 §$ 290 $ 282 § 129 § 62 § (18 $ 101 $ 48 § 2.09

~diluted” ... 4.00 3.08 2.87 2.76 1.27 81 {(18) 1.00 48 207
Net income (loss) per share - basic™ ..o 4.05 3.63 2.97 2.84 1.34 87 (14) 1.04 51 210
- diluted"................ 4.00 3,59 294 2.78 1.32 66 {14) 1.03 .51 2.08

Dividends declared per share™...........o.ooeevvvevnee. 91 .78 .60k 53 44 44 44 44 44 A4
Dividends pait per share® ..., B3 74 59 50 44 Al A4 A4 44 43
Average number of common

shares outstanding (in millions) — basic*......... 4493 466.8 486.6 494.5 480.4 476.4 470.0 468.6 4857 486.6

— dituted” ...... 455.0 4716 492.9 506.2 486.7 4818 4735 472.0 468.8 4914

* Adjusted for two-for-one stock split effective November 26, 2007.
TOtal AS5ELS.......cveceeer e $38576 $34720 $33637 $28,754 $26,258 $23,768 $22,663 $20,469 $17.578 $18,002
Trade accounts ang notes receivable —net ......... 3,055 3,038 Jng 3,207 2,619 2,734 2923 3,169 3,251 4,059
Financing receivables — net.........cccoovcee. 15631 14,004 12889 11,233 8,974 9,068 9,199 8,276 6,743 6,333
Restricted financing receivables —net ... 2,289 2,371 1,458
Equipment on operating leases — net................ 1,705 1,494 1,336 1,297 1,382 1,609 1,939 1,954 1,655 1,209
INVENLOTIES ... 2,337 1,957 2135 1,989 1,366 1,372 1,506 1,553 1,294 1,287
Property and equipment —net..........ccccocee v, 3,534 2,764 2,343 2138 2,064 1,985 2,037 1,893 1,759 1,675
Short-term borrowings:

Equipment Operations .........ccoeeevminnvrvernrens 130 282 678 312 577 398 773 928 642 1,512

Finangial SErVICES ...........corvvviernivenrierescenn. 9,839 7.839 6,206 3,146 3770 4,039 5,425 4,831 3.846 3,810

TOta] v 9,969 8.121 6.884 3,458 4,347 4,437 6,108 5759 4488 5,322

Long-term borrowings: .

Equipment Operations .......coccccovneeiiieiiennns 1,973 1,969 2,423 2,728 2727 2,989 2,210 1718 1,036 553

Financial SEFVICES ....cvuvviveeveneemrrrn s 9,825 8,615 9,316 8,362 7677 5,961 4,351 3046 2770 2,238

Total.occe e e 11,798 11,584 11,739 11,000 10404 8,950 6,561 4764 3,806 2,792

Total stockholders’ equity 7156 749 6,852 6,393 4,002 3,163 3,992 4,302 4,094 4,080
Book value per share®..........oeeereeeeervnrneen, $ 1628 $ 1648 $ 1446 $ 1295 § 822 & 662 $§ 841 ¢ 917 $ 876 F B78
Capital expenditires ............cooocennresrerseineseneens $105 § 774 § 512 $ 364 $ 313 $ 358 $ 495 § 419 §$ 308 § 438
Number of empioyess (at yearend) .......occocveers 52,022 46,548 47423 46,465 43220 43,051 45069 43670 38726 37,002

" Adjusted for two-for-one stock split effective November 28, 2007.
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL 'MEETING

TRANSFER AGENT & REGISTRAR

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT &
DIRECT PURCHASE PLAN

STOCKHOLDER RELATIONS

INVESTOR RELATIONS

STOCK EXCHANGES

FORM 10-K

AUDITORS

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING PUBLIC
DISCLOSURES & LISTING STANDARDS

CORPORATE LEADERSHIP

ROBERT W. LANE (26)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

H.J. MARKLEY (33)

Executive Vice President

Worldwide Parts Services, Global Supply Management and
ogistics, Enterprise Information Technology, and Corparate
Communications

JAMES R. JENKINS (7)
Senior Vice President and General Counsel

MICHAEL J. MACK, JR. {21)
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Otficer

JOHN ) DALHOFF {33)
Yice President ang Comptroller

JAMES A, DAVLIN *
Vice President and Treasurer

FRANCES B. EMERSON (2)
Yice President, Corporate Communications
and Global Brand Management

KLAUS G. HOEHN (19
Vice President, Advanced Technology and Engineering

MERTROE B. HORNBUCKLE (32)
Vice President, Human Resources

KENNETH C. HUHN (32}
Vice Presicent, Industrial Relations

JAMES R. JABANOSKI (27)
Yice President, Information Technology

THOMAS K. JARRETT (19}
Vice President, Taxes

GANESH JAYARAM (1)
Yice President, Corporate Business Development

THOMAS E. KNOLL (27)
Vice President, Worldwide Supply Management and Logistics

GAILE. LEESE (17}
Vice President, Worldwide Parts Services

GARY L. MEDD (41)
Vice President, Internal Audit

LINDA E. NEWBORN (35)
Vice President and Chief Compliance Otficer

DENNIS R, SCHWARTZ (40)
Yice President, Pension Fund and Investments

CHARLES R. STAMPF, JR. (8
Vice President, Public Affairs Worldwide

MARIE Z. ZIEGLER (29)
Vice President, |nvestor Relations

MARC A. HOWZE (6)
Corporate Secretary and Associate General Counsel

WORLODWICE AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT

DAVID C. EVERITT (32)
President, Agricultural Division — North America,
Australia, Asia and Glabal Tractor & implement Scurcing

ADEL A. ZAKARIA (31)
Executive Vice President, Strategic Manufacturing and
Engineering, Global Tractor & Implement Sourcing

BERNHARD E. HAAS (21)
Vice President, Manufacturing, Global
Tractor & Implement Sourcing

DOUGLAS C. DEVRIES (33)
Senir Vice Presicent, Agricultural Marketing —
North America, Australia, Asia

MARKWART vOoN PENTZ (17)
President, Agricultural Division — Europe, Africa, South America
2and Global Harvesting Equipment Sourcing

MAX A, GUINN (27}
Senior Vice President, Manufacturing and
Engineering, Global Harvesting Equipment Sourcing

STEFAN voN STEGMANN (17)
Vice President, Sales & Marketing, Agricultural Division —
Central Eurcpe, CIS, Africa, Middle East

CHRISTOPH WIGGER (16}
Vice President, Sales & Marketing, Agricultural Divisicn —
Western Europe

AARON L. WETZEL (18)
Vice President, Marketing, Sales and Planning,
Agricultural Division — South America

WORLDWIDE CONSTRUCTION & FORESTRY

SAMUEL R, ALLEN (32)
President, Worldwide Construction &
Forestry Division and John Deere Power Systems

DOUGLAS M. GAGE (29)
Vice President, Strategic Partnerships,
Worldwide Construction & Forestry

DOMENIC G. RUCCOLO (17)
Senior Vice Presigent, Sales & Marketing,
Worldwide Construction & Forestry

BARRY W. SCHAFFTER (34)
Senior Vice President, Engineering and Manutacturing,
Worldwide Construction & Forestry

JEAN H. GILLES (27}
Senior Vice President, John Deere Power Systems

BHARAT S VEDAK (18)
Senior Vice President, John Deere Intelligent
Mabile Equipment Technologies

WORLDWIDE COMMERCIAL & CONSUMER
EQUIPMENT

JAMES M. FIELD (13}
President, Wortdwide Commercial &
Consumer Equipment Division

ROBERT C. HOVE (28)
Senior Vice President, Customer Marketing & Sales

VIVIEN H. JOKLIK (6}
Senior Vice President, Product Marketing
& Business Development

RANDAL A, SERGESKET FTER {27)
Senior Vice President, Manufacturing,
Engineering, Supply Management and Orcer Fulfiliment

DAVID P WERNING (31}
Senior Vice President, Commercial Segment

JOHN DEERE CREDIT WORLDWIDE

JAMES A, ISRAEL (28)
Presigent, John Deere Credit

DANIEL C. MCCABE (33)
Senior Vice Presitent, Equipment Lerding, U.S. and Canada

STEPHEN PULLIN (13}
Senior Vice President, International Financing

LAWRENCE W. SIDWELL (8)
Senicr Vice President, Agricultural Financial Services

MARTIN L. WILKINSON (30)
Senior Vice President, Renewable Energy

{ ) Figures i parentheses represent conplete years
of company service through 1/1/08; assignments as of
/108

“Joined company in 2007
Unlass otherwise indicated, alf capitalized names of

products and services are trademarks or service marks of
Deere & Company.
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Directors from left: Joachim Milberg, Aulana L. Peters, Richard B, Myers, Arthur L. Kelly, Crandall C. Bowles, T. Kevin Dunnigan,
Robert W. L.ane, Antonic Madera B,, Clayton M, Jones, Dipak C. Jain, Charles Q. Haolliday, Jr., Vance B. Coffman, Thomas H. Patrick.

Durectors shown with 96307 track tractor.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CRANDALL C. BOWLES(11)
Chairman, Springs (ndustries, Inc,,
Chairman, The Springs Company

home furnishings

VANCE D. COFFMAN (3)
Retired Chairman

Lockheed Martin Corporation

aernspace, defense and information technoiogy

T. KEVIN DUNNIGAN (7)
Retired Chairman

Thomas & Betts Corporation
efecirical components

CHARLES O, HOLLIDAY, JR.*

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

DuPont

biotechnology, electrocies, inaterials science, safely and security, and
synthetic fibers

COMMITTEES

DIPAK C. JAIN (3)
Dean, Kellogg School of Management
Northwestern University

CLAYTON M. JONES*

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Rockwell Collins, Inc,

aviation electronics and communications

ARTHUR L. KELLY {14)
Managing Partner

KEL Enterprises L.P.

halding And wmsiment partnersid

ROBERT W, LANE (7}
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Deere & Company

ANTONIC MADERO B. (10)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
SANLUIS Corporacion, S.A. de C.Y.

JOACHIM MILBERG (4)
Chairman, Supervisory Board
Bayerische Motoren Werke (BMW) AG
molor vehicles

RICHARD B. MYERS (1)

Retired Chairman, Jeint Chiefs of Staff

Retired General, United States Air Force

pricipal military advisor to the President, the Secretary of
Defense, and the National Securty Council

THOMAS H. PATRICK (7)
Chairman

Mew Yernon Capital, LLC

private equity

AULANA L. PETERS (D)
Retired Pariner

Gibsen, Dunn & Crutcher LLP
faw

{ ) Figures in parentheses represent compiete years
of board service through 1/1/08: positions as of 1/1/08

"Jorned board in 2007

ALDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE
T. Kevin Dunnigan, Chair

Charles Q. Holliday, Jr.

Dipak C. Jain

Joachim Milberg

Thomas H. Patrick

Aulana L, Peters

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Arthur L. Kelty, Chair

Crandall C. Bowles

Vance D. Coffman

Clayton M. Jones

Antonio Madero B,

Richard B. Myers

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Crandall C. Bowles, Chair

Vance D. Coffman

T. Kevin Dunnigan

Charles 0. Holliday, Jr.

Joachirm Milberg

Autana L. Peters

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Rabert W. Lane, Chair

Crandall C. Bowles

T. Kevin Dunnigan

Arthur L. Kelly

Thomas H. Patrick

PENSION PLAN OVERSIGHT
COMMITTEE

Thorras H. Patrick, Chair

Dipak C. Jain

Clayton M. Jones.

Arthur L. Kelly

Antonio Madero B,

Richard B. Myers




DEERE & COMPANY
2007 HIGHLIGHTS

» Benefiting from growth worldwide, company eamings reach

record $1.8 billion; sales and revenues up 9% to $24.1 billion,

= Quarterly dividend rate boosted for fifth time in four years
—to 25 cents a share (adjusted to reflect 2-for-1 stock
split) — representing a 127% increase over period.

= Areflection of the company's commitment to innovative
growth, combined spending for R&D and capital projects
reaches $1.8 billion,

= In support of reduced greenhouse-gas emissions, Deere
. joins U.S. EPA's Climate Leaders program and U.S. Climate
Action Partnership.

= John Deere tractors and combines honored for innovation at
Agritechnica, a leading European trade show that recognizes
technology.

= Reflecting a strong commitment to employee safety,
worldwide lost-time injury rate declines to record low.

= Deere expands small-tractor manufacturing in China with
acquisition of Ningbo Benye, giving Deere more complete
product line in key emerging market.

» Acquisition of LESCO, Inc., a leading supplier of consumable
lawn care, landscape, and golf course products, mere than
doubles number of John Deere Landscapes locations.

= Partnership with Liebherr to service John Deere-powered OEM
equipment expands Deere's engine service netwaork by mare
than 150 locations throughout Europe.

» Benefiting from portfolio growth and strong loan quality,
John Deere Credit net income tops $360 million.

= Deere listed among top corporate citizens by CRO
magazine, a journal for corporate responsibility officers,
for seventh time in eight years.

= John Deere Foundation awards $1.25 million grant to
lowa State University for construction of agricultural and
biosystems engineering facility.

JOHN DEERE

Deere & Company Moline, lllinois 61265
phone: 309.765.8000  www.JohnDeere.com

One John Deere Place

EZtrak line of zero-turn-radius
mowers, introduced in 2007,
experienced strong sales. Designed
exclusively for property owners, the
mowers deliver a high-quality cut as
well as improved operater comfort
and maneuverability. Plus, they help
customers cover more acres in

fess time.

Manufactured at Deere’s world-
class facilities in Mannhgim,
Germany, the E Premium
Series tractors (7530 E shown)
conserve fuel and optimize
horsepower thanks to an on-
board 20-kilowatt electric power
network, An industry first, the
system runs engine cooling and
certain accessories.

leadership in global forestry, the
new John Deere 848H skidder
offers loggers increased productivity
and lower operating costs. The 848H
is the largest member ef the John
[eare skidder line.

[
|
i Building on the company’s
|

Increased efficiency and
improved productivity are
hallmarks of the 3105)
backhoe loader introduced
in 2007. Manufactured in
Dubuque, lowa, the 3108)
features a 92-hp engine.

One of three new self-propelled sprayers

that came to market in 2007, the John Deere 4830
model features the latest in precision guidance
technology and variable rate software. One result:
Sactions of the machine's 100-foot boam
automatically shut off at end rows
and waterways.




